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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH
CA (CAA) No./23/Chd/Hry/2023

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED WITH PB FINTECH LIMITED
AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

PB Fintech Limited, a company incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity
Number: L51909HR2008PLC037998 and its registered
office at Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram - 122 001,
Haryana.

... Company/ Transferee Company

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

To
The Equity Shareholders of PB Fintech Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that, in accordance with the Order dated 5% July 2023 in the above captioned Company
Application, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Tribunal”) (“Tribunal Order”),
a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company, will be held for the purpose of their considering, and if
thought fit, approving, with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies
Limited (“Transferor Company”) with PB Fintech Limited (“Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders (“Scheme”) on Saturday 2" September 2023 at 02.30 p.m (IST) (“Meeting”).

Pursuant to the said Tribunal Order and as directed therein, the Meeting will be held through video conferencing (“vC”)/
other audio visual means (“OAVM”), in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”),
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(“SS-2") to consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with our without modification(s) the following resolution for approval of
the Scheme by requisite majority as prescribed under Sections 230(1) and (6) read with 232(1) of the Act, as amended:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars and

notifications made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force), subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of PB Fintech Limited (“Company”)
and subject to the approval of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Tribunal”) and subject to
such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to
such conditions and modifications as may be deemed appropriate by the parties to the Scheme, at any time and for any
reason whatsoever, or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed or imposed by
the Tribunal or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, which
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be
deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/ to be constituted by the Board or any other person
authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the arrangement embodied
in the Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited with PB Fintech Limited and their respective
shareholders (“Scheme”), be and is hereby approved.



FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it
may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution and
effectively implement the amalgamation embodied in the Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to the
Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or
conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the Tribunal while sanctioning the arrangement embodied
in the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts
or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books
of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board may delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s) and/
or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to this Resolution, if required, as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit,
necessary or desirable, without any further approval from equity shareholders of the Company.”

3. TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT the Equity Shareholders shall have the facility and option of voting on the resolution for
approval of the Scheme by casting their votes (a) through e-voting system available at the Meeting to be held virtually
(“e-voting at the Meeting”); or (b) by remote electronic voting (“remote e-voting”) during the period as stated below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD
Commencement of voting Tuesday, 29t August 2023 at 09.00 a.m. (IST)
End of voting Friday, 1%t September 2023 at 05.00 p.m. (IST)

4. Aperson, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., Saturday, 26" August 2023 (“Cut-off Date”) only shall be entitled to exercise his/
her/ its voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not an equity
shareholder as on the Cut-off Date, should treat the Notice for information purpose only.

5. A copy of the Scheme, statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of
the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“CAA Rules”) along
with all annexures to such statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying documents are
also placed on the website of the Transferee Company and can be accessed at https://www.pbfintech.in/, website of Link
Intime India Private Limited at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Transferee
Company ("RTA" or “LIIPL"), which will provide the facility of voting to the Equity Shareholders through remote e-voting,
for participation in the Meeting through VC/OAVM and e-voting at the Meeting and the website of the Stock Exchanges
i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) viz. www.bseindia.com and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) viz. www.
nseindia.com.

6. The Tribunal has appointed Dr. Surekha Thukral, Advocate and failing her Mrs. Krishna Anmol Singh, Advocate to be
the Chairperson of the said Meeting including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof and Mr. Nikhil Sachdeva,
Chartered Accountant to be the Scrutinizer for the Meeting.

7. The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the Tribunal and such
other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

Place: Mohali
Date: 31 July 2023

Sd/-
Dr. Surekha Thukral
Chairperson appointed by Tribunal
for the Meeting
Registered Office:
Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram - 122 001, Haryana
CIN: L51909HR2008PLC037998
Website: https://www.pbfintech.in/
E-mail: complianceofficer@pbfintech.in
Phone: 0124-4562907
Fax: 0124-4562907




Notes for the Meeting:

1.

Pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble Tribunal vide the Tribunal Order, the Meeting is being conducted through VC/
OAVM facility to transact the business set out in this Notice. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the registered
office of the Transferee Company.

The Statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
Rule 6 of the CAA Rules read with SEBI Listing Regulations in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting
is annexed hereto. The Meeting will be conducted in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Tribunal Order,
SEBI Listing Regulations, Act, SS-2 and other applicable laws.

In terms of the Tribunal Order, the Notice, Statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and
other applicable provisions of the Act and all annexures thereto are being sent through electronic mode to those Equity
Shareholders whose e-mail IDs are registered with the RTA i.e., LIIPL, or Depository Participants or the Transferee
Company. The aforesaid particulars are being sent to all the Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the register of
members/ list of beneficial owners as on 26 August 2023.

Since, the Meeting is being held through VC/ OAVM, physical attendance of the Equity Shareholders has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Equity Shareholders will not be available for the Meeting
and hence the Route Map, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. However, in pursuance of Section
113 of the Act, authorized representatives of institutional/ corporate shareholders may be appointed for the purpose of
voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the Meeting through VC/ OAVM facility and e-voting at the Meeting
provided that such shareholder sends a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its board or governing body resolution/
authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf, vote through
e-voting at the Meeting and/or to vote through remote e-voting, on its behalf. They are also required to upload a
scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate
Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

The scanned image of the abovementioned documents should be in the PDF Format. The said resolution/authorization
shall be sent to the scrutinizer by email through his registered email id address to nikhilsachdeva.ca@gmail.com
and to the Transferee Company at complianceofficer@pbfintech.in, before the VC/OAVM Meeting or before the
remote e-voting, as the case may be. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board
resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the
same.

The RTA will provide the facility for voting to the Equity Shareholders through remote e-voting, for participation in the
Meeting through VC/ OAVM and e-voting at the Meeting.

Equity Shareholders attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum. In terms of
the Tribunal Order, the quorum for the Meeting shall be 85,530 in number or 40% in value of the equity shareholders
of the Transferee Company. Further, in terms of the Tribunal Order in case the aforesaid quorum for the Meeting is not
present at the commencement of the Meeting, then the Meeting shall be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter, the
persons present and voting at the Meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

Voting rights of an Equity Shareholder/ beneficial owner shall be in proportion to his/ her/ its shareholding in the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut-off Date (specified in the Notice). In case of joint holders, the
Equity Shareholder whose name appears as the first holder in the order of the names as per the register of members of
the Transferee Company will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Only registered Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company may attend and vote or in the case of a body corporate
or Registered Foreign Portfolio Investors (“RFPI”) or Foreign Institutional Investor (“FIl”), by a representative authorized
under Section 113 of the Act at the Meeting. The authorized representative of a body corporate/ RFPI/ FIl which is
a registered equity shareholder of the Transferee Company may attend and vote at the Meeting provided a copy of
the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of the body corporate/ RFPI/ Fll authorizing such
representative to attend and vote at the Meeting, duly certified to be a true copy by a director, the manager, the



10.

11.
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13.

14.

15.

secretary or other authorized officer of such body corporate/ RFPI/ FlI, is emailed to the scrutinizer through email at the
registered email address nikhilsachdeva.ca@gmail.com with a copy marked to complianceofficer@pbfintech.in before
the scheduled date and time of the Meeting.

The Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company can join the Meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
The detailed instructions for joining the Meeting through VC/ OAVM forms part of the Notes to this Notice.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Statement, shall be available for inspection through electronic
mode during the proceedings of the Meeting. The Equity Shareholders seeking to inspect copies of the said documents
may send an email to the Company Secretary at complianceofficer@pbfintech.in. Further, all the documents referred
to in the accompanying explanatory statement shall also be open for inspection to the Equity Shareholders at the
registered office of the Transferee Company between 10:30 A.M. to 12:30 P.M., on all working days up to the date of the
Meeting. In addition to the above, all the documents referred to in the accompanying Statement, shall also be placed
on the website of the Transferee Company i.e. https://www.pbfintech.in/ and shall also be simultaneously placed on
the website of the RTA at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

If so desired, Equity Shareholders may obtain a physical copy of the Notice and the accompanying documents, i.e.,
Scheme and the Statement under Section 230 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
Rule 6 of the CAA Rules, free of charge. A written request in this regard, along with details of your shareholding in the
Transferee Company, may be addressed to the Company Secretary at complianceofficer@pbfintech.in.

Subject to receipt of requisite majority of votes as per Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Resolution proposed in the
Notice shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of the Meeting (specified in the Notice).

It is clarified that casting of votes by remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) does not disentitle Equity Shareholder from
attending the Meeting. However, after exercising right to vote through remote e-voting prior to the Meeting, Equity
Shareholder shall not vote again at the Meeting. In case the Equity Shareholders cast their vote via both the modes
i.e. remote e-voting prior to the Meeting as well as e-voting at the Meeting, then voting done through remote e-voting
before the Meeting shall prevail once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Equity Shareholder, whether partially or
otherwise. The equity shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Remote e-voting: The remote e-voting period shall commence on Tuesday, 29" August 2023 at 09.00 a.m. (IST) and ends
on Friday, 1% September 2023 at 05.00 p.m (IST). During this period, Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company,
as on the Cut-off Date i.e. Saturday, 26" August 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The said remote e-voting
module shall be disabled by the RTA for voting immediately thereafter. A person who is not an Equity Shareholder of the
Transferee Company as on the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice for information purpose only.

Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company who have not registered their email address with the Company/
Depositories/DPs, may complete the email registration process as under to vote on the resolutions mentioned
therein:

(i) The Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company holding shares in demat/ physical form and who have not
registered their e-mail addresses may temporarily get their e-mail addresses registered with RTA by clicking the
link: https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.htm| on its website https://www.linkintime.co.in/ at the
Investor Services tab by choosing the e-mail registration heading and follow the registration process as guided
therein. The Equity Shareholders are requested to provide details such as Name, DP ID, Client ID/Folio Number
PAN, mobile number and e-mail id and Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form, also provide the
certificate number and upload the image of share certificate in PDF or JPEG format (upto 1 MB). In case of any
query, an Equity Shareholder may send an e-mail to RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

(ii) On submission of the shareholders details an OTP will be received by the Equity Shareholder which needs to be
entered in the link for verification. Itis clarified that for permanent registration of email address, Equity Shareholders
are requested to register their email addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with their concerned Depository
Participants by following the procedure prescribed by the Depository Participants.



16. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The instruction and other information relating to remote e-voting are as under:

As per the Circular dated December 9, 2020 bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode
can register directly with the Depository Participants or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly
from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode is given below:

1.

Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode with National Securities Depository
Limited (“NSDL”):

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Existing IdeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login”” which is available under ‘IdeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on the Transferee Company’s name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LIIPL and you will be
re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period.

If you are not registered for IdeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com
Select “Register Online for IdeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.
isp

Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number held with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see the e-voting page. Click on the Transferee
Company’s name or e-voting service provider name i.e. LIIPL and you will be redirected to “InstaVote”
website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode with Central Depository Services Limited
(“cDSL”):

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password.
The option will be made available to reach e-voting page without any further authentication. The users to
login Easi / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New
System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-voting option for the Transferee
Company where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by the Transferee Company.
On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-voting page of the e-voting service provider
i.e. LIIPL for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining the Meeting & e-voting at
the Meeting. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the system of all the e-voting Service
Providers, so that the Equity Shareholder can visit the e-voting service providers’ website directly.

If the Equity Shareholder is not registered for Easi/Easiest, the option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

Alternatively, the Equity Shareholder can directly access the e-voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from e-voting link available on www.cdslindia.com. The system will authenticate the
Equity Shareholder by sending an OTP on the registered mobile number & email address as recorded in
the demat account. After successful authentication, the Equity Shareholder will be able to see the e-voting
option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-voting Service
Providers.




Individual Equity Shareholders (holding equity shares in demat mode) login through their depository
participants:

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-voting option.
Once you click on e-voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository website after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-voting feature. Click on the Transferee Company’s name or e-voting
service provider name i.e. LIIPL and you will be redirected to e-voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-voting period.

Login method for individual Equity Shareholder holding equity shares in physical form/ non-individual Equity
Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode is given below:

Individual Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company, holding equity shares in physical form/ Non-
Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode as on the Cut-off Date for e-voting at the
Meeting may register for e-voting facility of the RTA as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID: Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Transferee Company. Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in NSDL's
demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Equity Shareholders
holding equity shares in CDSL’s demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Equity Shareholders who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enterthe Date of Birth (DOB)/ Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your Depository
Participant/ Transferee Company — in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your
Depository Participant/ Transferee Company.

*Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘4.D’ above.

*Equity Shareholders holding equity shares with the demat account provided by NSDL, shall provide
details specified in ‘4.D" above.

° Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one
special Character (@ !#5&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital
letter).

®  Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).
3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.
4.  Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1.  After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

N

E-voting page will appear.

3.  Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour/ Against’ (If
you wish to view the entire resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).

4.  Afterselecting the desired option i.e. Favour/ Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed.
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify
your vote.



Guidelines for Institutional Equity Shareholders:

Institutional Equity Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log
on the e-voting system of the RTA at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian/
Mutual Fund/ Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board
resolution/ authority letter/ power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian/ Mutual Fund/ Corporate Body’ login for the
Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical mode and Institutional Equity
Shareholders:

Equity Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact LIIPL's INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a
request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: Tel: 022 — 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode:

Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can con-
equity shares in demat mode with NSDL tact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at: 022 — 4886 7000 and 022 — 2499 7000

Individual Equity Shareholders holding eq- | Equity Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can con-
uity shares in demat mode with CDSL tact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login
ID] or Password or both then such Equity Shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the
e-voting website of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

= Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
= Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

= In case any Equity Shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered
e-mail address. Equity Shareholder can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about
the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits)
etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character
(@!#5&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

= User ID for Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Transferee Company.

Individual Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the
password:

Equity Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

= |tis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

=  For Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.
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= During the voting period, Equity Shareholder can login any number of time till they have voted on the
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Instructions for attending the Meeting through InstaMeet:

(i) Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

® Select the “Transferee Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -
A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No
B. Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

C. Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID

D. Equity Shareholders holding equity shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with
the Transferee Company

E. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Equity Shareholder who have not updated
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Transferee Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, if applicable.

F. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.
G. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/ Transferee Company.

H. Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the
Meeting).

Please refer the instructions (specified in Paragraph 17 below) for the software requirements and kindly ensure
to install the same on the device which would be used to attend the Meeting. Please read the instructions
carefully and participate in the Meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for any support on
the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMeeT website.

Instructions for Equity Shareholders to Speak during the Meeting through InstaMeet:

(i) Equity Shareholders who like to express their views or ask questions during the Meeting may register
themselves as speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name,
DP ID and client ID/ Folio no, No. of shares, PAN, mobile number at complianceofficer@pbfintech.in on or
before 29*" August 2022 till 05.00 P.M. (IST).

(i) Equity Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the Meeting.
(iii) Other Equity Shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the Meeting.

(iv) Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video
mode and audio of your device.

(v) Equity Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the Meeting/ management will
announce the name and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Equity Shareholders to vote during the Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the Meeting, Equity Shareholders
who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

(i) On the Equity Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-voting “Cast your vote.”

(ii) Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No./ Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/
registered email id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on ‘Submit’.

(iii) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/
Against” for voting.
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(iv) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares
(which represents no. of votes) as on the Cut-off Date under ‘Favour/Against’.

(v) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on
“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to
change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

(vi) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subsequently.

Note: Equity Shareholders who will be present in the Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-voting facility during the meeting. Equity Shareholders who have voted
through Remote e-voting prior to the Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual Meeting
through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the Meeting.

Equity Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband
for better experience.

Equity Shareholders are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

Please note that Equity Shareholders connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case Equity Shareholders have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to instameet@
linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

Guidelines to attend the Meeting through InstaMeet:

(i) Forasmooth experience of viewing the Meeting proceedings through InstaMeet, Equity Shareholders who
are registered as speakers for the Meeting are requested to download and install the Webex application in
advance by following the instructions as under:

(ii) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/
downloads.html
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(iii)

Or

If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the Meeting by following
the process mentioned as under:

Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.
(A) If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the Meeting by
clicking on Join Now
(B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to

either Add Webex to chrome or Run a temporary application.

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe
file to run the application and join the Meeting by clicking on Join Now

Evant Information

Wrddn st
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Declaration of Voting Results: The Scrutinizer will, after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, scrutinize the
votes cast at the Meeting and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and
submit the same to the Chairperson of the Meeting. The result of voting for the Meeting will be declared within
2 (two) working days of the conclusion of the Meeting and the same, along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s
Report, will be placed on the website of the Transferee Company: https://www.pbfintech.in/ and on the website
of RTA at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. The result will simultaneously be communicated to the Stock
Exchanges. The result will also be displayed at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company.

PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Documents for inspection as referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection without
any payment of fee by the Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company from the date of circulation
of this Notice up to the date of Meeting. The Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company seeking to
inspect such documents can write to the Transferee Company at complianceofficer@pbfintech.in.

The Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company seeking any information with regard to the Scheme or
the matter proposed to be considered at the Meeting, are requested to write to the Transferee Company at
least 7 (seven) days before the date of the Meeting through email on complianceofficer@pbfintech.in. The
same will be replied to by the Transferee Company, suitably.

The Equity Shareholders are requested to carefully read all the Notes set out herein and in particular,
instructions for joining the Meeting and manner of casting vote through remote e-voting and e-voting at
the Meeting.



FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH
CA (CAA) No. /23/Chd/Hry/2023

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED WITH PB FINTECH LIMITED

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”) AND RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS)

RULES, 2016 (“CAA RULES) TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF PB FINTECH LIMITED

CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH

(“TRIBUNAL”) DATED 5™ JULY 2023 (“TRIBUNAL ORDER”)

1.

MEETING FOR THE SCHEME

This is a Statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of PB Fintech Limited
(“Transferee Company” or “Company”), for the purpose of their considering and if thought fit, approving, with or
without modification(s), the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with PB Fintech Limited and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”) (“Meeting”). The Scheme provides
for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and various other matters consequential
thereto or otherwise integrally connected therewith.

Capital terms not defined herein and used in the Notice and this Statement shall have the same meaning as ascribed to
them in the Scheme.

The salient features of the Scheme are given in Paragraph 5 of this Statement. A copy of the Scheme is annexed hereto
and marked as Annexure 1.

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

The circumstances which justify and/or have necessitated the said Scheme and the benefits of the same are, inter alia,
as follows:

(i)  The Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and will
result in the following benefits:

(a)  streamlining of the corporate structure;
(b)  pooling of resources of the Transferor Company with the resources of the Transferee Company;

(c)  significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried
out by both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

(d) rationalisation of costs, time and efforts by eliminating multiple record keeping, administrative functions
and consolidation of financials through legal entity rationalisation; and

(e)  reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal as well as reqgulatory compliances.

(i)  The Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders, employees and the creditors of each of the Parties.



3.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

3.1

Particulars of the Transferee Company

311

3.1.2

313

The Transferee Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 4™ June 2008 in the State
of Haryana on 4% June 2008 under the name of ‘ETECHACES Marketing and Consulting Private Limited’.
The name of the Transferee Company was changed from ‘ETECHACES Marketing and Consulting Private
Limited’ to ‘PB Fintech Private Limited’ in terms fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated 18" September
2020. The name of the Transferee Company was further changed to ‘PB Fintech Limited’ in terms of fresh
Certificate of Incorporation dated 30" June 2021 consequent upon change on conversion to a public limited
company. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) w.e.f 15" November 2021. The registered office of the Transferee
Company is presently located at Plot No. 119, Sector 44, Gurugram — 122001, Haryana. The Corporate
Identity Number of the Transferee Company is L51909HR2008PLC037998 and Permanent Account Number
is AACCE0182A. The Transferee Company’s email address is complianceofficer@pbfintech.in.

The Transferee Company inter alia is an integrated online marketing and consulting company and is
engaged in the business of rendering online marketing and information technology consulting and support
services largely for the financial services industry, including insurance.

The main objects for which the Transferee Company was incorporated are set out in its Memorandum of
Association which inter alia are as follows:

1. To carry on the business in India and abroad of online, offline, direct marketing, traders, marketers,
consultants, manufacturers, importers, exporters, buyers, sellers, dealers, agents, merchants,
stockists, shippers, market research consultants, agents in relation to all kinds of goods, merchandise,
live-stock and services including industrial plant and machinery, motor vehicles, cars, motor cycles,
scooters, bicycles, office equipments, all consumer durable items, house-hold equipments, metals,
paper, wood, chemicals, pharmaceutical products, hardware, fasteners, computer hardware,
software and all other kinds of goods merchandise and services and to establish international
marketing and agency network.

2. To act as an export house, marketing network establishment, direct marketing/multi-level marketing
establishment, liasion agent and consultants in respect of the business as referred to in sub-clause
(1) above.

3. To establish, maintain, conduct, provide, procure or make available services of every kind including

IT, commercial, statistical, financial, accountancy, medical, legal, management, educational,
engineering, data processing, brand building, fulfiiment, call centre, communication and other
technological, social or any consultancy services.

4. To carry on the business of distribution and to solicit and procure sales of mutual funds, bonds or
any other financial products issued by Banks, Mutual Funds or any financial intermediary in India
or outside and to render services as commission agents, brokers, managers, agents or attorney,
providing financial, investment advisory services, management and facilitation services, including
but not limited to identifying investment opportunities, conducting analysis and assessment,
providing investment recommendations and consultancy service to venture capital funds, including
the trustees, beneficiaries and contributories of such funds, other funds (including but not limited to
funds for providing debt financing investing in equity, equity linked securities, Mutual Fund and all
other instruments as permitted under applicable laws), trusts, investment companies, joint ventures,
corporate, institutional, group and individual investors.

3.1.4 Other than as mentioned above, there has been no change in the name, registered office and main objects

of the Transferee Company in the last 5 years.



3.1.5 The share capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 15 July 2023 is as follows:

Particulars INR

Authorised Share Capital
49,05,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each
9,50,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 20 each

98,10,00,000
1,90,00,000
Total 100,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
45,01,16,349 equity shares of INR 2 each

90,02,32,698
Total 90,02,32,698

3.1.6 The details of Directors of the Transferee Company along with their addresses are mentioned herein below:

Sr No. Name of Director Designation Address
1. Mr. Yashish Dahiya Executive Director- 4 Eversley Park, Wimbledon Common
Chairperson-CEO SW194UU, London, United Kingdom
2. Mr. Alok Bansal Whole Time Director and | C-701, Olive Crescent, GH-12, Sector-47,
Executive Vice Chairman Gurgaon Haryana- 1220018
3. Mr. Nilesh Bhaskar Non-Executive - Plot No. 173, Shankar Nagar, Nagpur,
Sathe Independent Director Maharshtra - 440010
4, Mrs. Veena Vikas Non-Executive - 801, Park Heights, 10th Road, Near
Mankar Independent Director Madhu Park, Khar West, Mumbai,
Maharshtra — 400052
5. Mr. Kaushik Dutta Non-Executive - A 843 Lavy Pinto Block, Asiad Games
Independent Director Village, Delhi 110049
6. Mr. Gopalan Non-Executive - 17/9, 2ND Avenue Harrington Road,
Srinivasan Independent Director Chetpet, Chennai-600031, Tamil Nadu
7. Ms.Lilian Jessie Paul Non-Executive - Villa 1, Prestige Cedars, 7 Convent
Independent Director Road, Richmond Town, Bengaluru,
Karnataka-560025
8. Mr. Sarbvir Singh Non-Executive - House No-46, Sector-37, Noida, Uttar
Independent Director Pradesh--201301
9. Ms.Kitty Agarwal Non-Executive - Nominee | 26/3, Hindustan Park, Sarat Bose Road,
Director Kolkata, West Bengal-700029

3.2 Particulars of the Transferor Company

3.2.1 The Transferor Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 21 September 2010 in the
State of Maharashtra under the name of ‘Makesense Technologies Private Limited’ in terms of Certificate of
Incorporation dated 21% September 2010. The registered office of the Transferor Company was shifted from
the State of Maharashtra to the National Capital Territory of Delhi w.e.f. 11" August 2014. The name of the
Transferor Company was changed from ‘Makesense Technologies Private Limited’ to its current name ‘Makesense
Technologies Limited’ in terms of Certificate of Incorporation issued pursuant to conversion from private company
to public company dated 26™ March 2015. The registered office of the Transferor Company was then shifted from
the National Capital Territory of Delhi to the State of Haryana w.e.f. 4" January 2021. The registered office of the
Transferor Company is presently located at Plot No. 123, Sector-44 Gurugram — 122001, Haryana. The Corporate
Identity Number of the Transferor Company is U74999HR2010PLC092002 and Permanent Account Number is
AAGCM7642H.



3.2.2 The Transferor Company inter alia carries on the business of providing services and solutions in relation to
placement consultancy, personnel recruitment, staffing, professional hiring and management consultancy to all
kinds of persons, firms or organizations.

3.2.3 The main objects for which the Transferor Company was incorporated are set out in its Memorandum of
Association which inter alia are as follows: -

1

To carry on the business of providing services and solutions in relation to placement consultancy, personnel
recruitment, staffing, professional hiring, high skilled executive search payroll consultancy, head hunting,
management training, post recruitment services, human financial matters, management consultancy,
human technical matters, temporary staffing and other related services, to all kinds of persons, firms
or organizations, either society or on behalf of such persons, firms or organizations, whether in India or
overseas in all categories of manpower requirements.

To develop, possess, buy, sell and market certain technological solutions in area of placement consultancy
including technologies like development and marketing of a recruitment framework software to aid in
searching for candidates, job openings, arranging, screening and filtering and filtering of data in curriculum
vitae/ resume of candidates and to carry out all acts so as to effectively find the right person for the right job
in the shortest possible timeframe.

3.2.4 Other than as mentioned above, there has been no change in the name, registered office and main objects of the
Transferor Company in the last 5 years.

3.2.5 The shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any Stock Exchanges.

3.2.6 The share capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 15" July 2023 is as follows:

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital
2,55,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 25,50,00,000
30,00,000 preference shares of INR 100 each 30,00,00,000
Total 55,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
12,16,500 equity shares of INR 10 each 1,21,65,000
Total 1,21,65,000

3.2.7 The details of Directors of the Transferor Company along with their addresses are mentioned herein below:

Sr No. Name of Director Designation Address
1. Mr.Sanjeev Bikhchandani | Director N-42, Ground Floor, Panchsheel Park, Malviya
Nagar, Delhi—110017
2. Mr. Chintan Arvind Director 803, A Wing, The Forest Spa, Sec 93-B,
Thakkar Gautam Buddha Nagar, Near Biodiversity Park,
Noida-201304, Uttar Pradesh
3. Mr. Mohit Naresh Nominee Director | 2301, Sumer Trinity Tower No. 2A, 23" Floor,
Bhandari Behind Chaitanya Tower, Near Samna Press,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400025

3.2.8 The audited financial results of the Transferee Company for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 and the
audited financial statements of the Transferor Company for the year ended 315t March 2023 (approved by Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company but are yet to be adopted by the shareholders of the Transferor Company)
are annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 2 and Annexure 3 respectively.



SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

The salient features of the Scheme are, inter alia, as stated below. The capitalized terms used herein shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to them in Clause 1 of Part | of the Scheme:

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

The Scheme provides for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and is presented
under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

In consideration for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall issue and allot consideration, on proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company as per the following ratio:

“5,98,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid up of the Transferee Company in the proportion of the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders in the Transferor Company”

The Appointed Date for the Scheme shall be the opening of the business hours of 1 April 2022 or such other date
as may be approved by the Tribunal.

The Effective Date shall be the last of the dates on which the conditions specified in Clause 20 of the Scheme are
complied with or are waived by the Board of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

The Scheme shall become effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without winding up and the
Board and any committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed
be and stand discharged. On and from the Effective Date, the name of the Transferor Company shall be struck off
from the records of the RoC.

Combination of the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company with the authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company and consequential increase in the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company as
provided in Part Il of the Scheme.

New Shares (as defined in the Scheme) to be issued by the Transferee Company to the equity shareholders of
the Transferor Company pursuant to the Scheme, will be listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to conditions precedent as mentioned in Clause 20 of the Scheme.

Note: The above are the salient features of the Scheme. The Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company are
requested to read the entire text of the Scheme annexed hereto to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Company holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each representing 13.30% of the total paid up share
capital of the Transferee Company.

BOARD APPROVALS

6.1

The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at its meeting held on 26™ April 2022 unanimously approved
the Scheme, as given below:

Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate or vote
Mr. Kaushik Dutta Voted in favour
Mr. Sarbvir Singh Voted in favour
Mr. Yashish Dhaiya Voted in favour
Mr. Alok Bansal Voted in favour
Mr. Nilesh Bhaskar Sathe Voted in favour




Mr. Gopalan Srinivasan Voted in favour
Mrs. Veena Mankar Voted in favour
Ms. Kitty Agarwal Voted in favour
Ms. Lilian Jessie Paul Voted in favour

6.2 The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its meeting held on 26" April 2022 unanimously approved
the Scheme, as given below:

Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate or vote
Mr. Sanjeev Bikhchandani Voted in Favour
Mr. Chintan Arvind Thakkar Voted in Favour
Mr. Mohit Naresh Bhandari Voted in Favour

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) AND THEIR RELATIVES:

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the Transferee Company and
their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except
to the extent of their shareholding in the Transferee Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the
KMPs or their respective relatives have any material interest in the Scheme.

None of the Directors, KMPs, if any (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder), as applicable, of the
Transferor Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder), has any
interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the Transferor Company, if any. Save as aforesaid,
none of the said Directors or the KMPs, as applicable, or their respective relatives has any material interest in the
Scheme.

EFFECT OF SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS
The effect of scheme on various stakeholders is summarized below:

8.1 Equity Shareholders (promoter and non-promoter shareholders) and KMP

The effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders and KMP of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company, is given in the report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company at their respective meetings held on 26%™ April 2022, pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of
the Act which are annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 4A and Annexure 4B respectively.

The Transferee Company does not have any identifiable promoter.
8.2 Directors

The Scheme will have no adverse effect on the office of existing Directors of the Transferee Company. Further, no
change in the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company is envisaged on account of the Scheme. It is clarified
that, the composition of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company may change by appointments,
retirements or resignations in accordance with the provisions of the Act but the Scheme itself does not affect the
office of Directors of the Transferee Company.

The effect of the Scheme on the Directors of the Transferee Company in their capacity as Equity Shareholders
of the Transferee Company is the same as in case of other Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company, as
mentioned in the aforesaid report enclosed herewith as Annexure 4A hereto.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Directors of the Transferor Company will cease to become Directors of
the Transferor Company.
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8.3 Employees

The Scheme will have no effect on the existing employees of the Transferee Company.

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company undertakes
to engage, without any interruption in service, all employees of the Transferor Company on terms and conditions
no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company.

8.4 Creditors, Debenture holders and Debenture Trustees

The proposed Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors. Creditors of the
Transferee Company will continue to be creditors on the same terms and conditions, as before. The rights of the
creditors of the Transferee Company shall not be adversely affected by the Scheme.

On the Scheme becoming effective, the creditors of the Transferor Company will become creditors of the
Transferee Company and there will be no reduction in the claims of the creditors of the Transferor Company on
account of the Scheme and will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their dues are payable.
There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as a result of the Scheme being
sanctioned.

Neither there are any debenture holders nor there are any debenture trustees of the Transferor Company or the
Transferee Company.

8.5 Depositors and Deposit Trustees

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company have not taken any term deposits from depositors,
therefore, no deposit trustees have been appointed.

CAPITAL/ DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The Scheme does not contain or provide for capital/ debt restructuring. The Scheme does not in any manner adversely
or prejudicially affect the rights of any creditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company or contemplate
any compromise or arrangement with the creditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the entire equity share capital of the Transferee Company to the extent held by the Transferor
Company shall stand cancelled.

NO INVESTIGATION PROCEEDINGS

There are no proceedings pending under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act against the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company.

AMOUNTS DUE TO UNSECURED CREDITORS

The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, as on 30" June 2023
is as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the company Amount in INR
1. Transferor Company 0.00
2. Transferee Company 1,35,35,698

The Scheme embodies the arrangement between the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, and their respective
shareholders. No change in value or terms or any compromise or arrangement is proposed under the Scheme with any
of the creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.



12.

PRE ARRANGEMENT AND POST ARRANGEMENT SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company as on 15% July 2023 is as follows:

Sr. No.

Particulars of Shareholder

No. of shares

% of Holding

(A)

Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

Indian

Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family

Central Government/ State Government(s)

Bodies Corporate

6,08,305

50.0044%

Financial Institutions/ Banks

Any Others

Sub Total(A)(1)

6,08,305

50.0044%

Foreign

Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/
Foreign Individuals)

Bodies Corporate

Institutions

(d)

Any Others

Sub Total(A)(2)

Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

6,08,305

50.0044%

(B)

Public shareholding

Institutions

(a)

Mutual Funds/ UTI

(b)

Financial Institutions / Banks

(c)

Central Government/ State Government(s)

(d)

Venture Capital Funds

(e)

Insurance Companies

(f)

Foreign Portfolio Investors (Individual & Corporate)

(g)

Foreign Venture Capital Investors

(h)

Any Other(AIF)

Sub-Total (B)(1)

Non-institutions

(a)

Bodies Corporate

49.9951%

(b)

Individuals

0.0005%

Individuals -i. Individual shareholders holding nominal
share capital up to Rs 2 lakh

ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 2 lakh.

(c)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

(d)

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

(e)

Non-Resident Indians (NRlIs)

(f)

Any Other (Trusts, HUF, LLPs and Clearing Members)

Sub-Total (B)(2)

6,08,195

49.9956%

(B)

Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

TOTAL (A)+(B)

12,16,500

100%

(€

Shares held by Custodians and against which DRs have
been issued

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C)

12,16,500

100%

Upon effectiveness of the Scheme the Transferor Company will be dissolved without winding up.
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The pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company as on 30" June 2023 is as follows:

Sr. No. Particulars of Shareholder No. of shares % of Holding
(A) | Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
1 Indian
(a) | Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family 0 0.00
(b) | Central Government/ State Government(s) 0 0.00
(c) Bodies Corporate 0 0.00
(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks 0 0.00
(e) | Any Others 0 0.00
Sub Total(A)(1) 0 0.00
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/ 0 0.00
Foreign Individuals)
(b) | Bodies Corporate 0 0.00
(c) Institutions 0 0.00
(d) | Any Others 0 0.00
Sub Total(A)(2) 0 0.00
Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group (A)= (A)(1)+(A) 0 0.00
(2)
(B) | Public shareholding
1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI 3,35,38,366 7.45
(b) | Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0.00
(c) Central Government/ State Government(s) 0 0.00
(d) | Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00
(e) Insurance Companies 1,58,98,031 3.53
(f) Foreign Portfolio Investors (Individual & Corporate) 13,35,60,836 29.67
(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 2,44,30,015 5.43
(h) | Any Other(AIF/Provident Fund/NBFC/FDI) 8,51,59,344 18.92
Sub-Total (B)(1) 29,25,86,592 65.00
2 Non-institutions
(a) Bodies Corporate 9,37,04,490 20.82
(b) Individuals
| Individuals -i. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital up 1,58,81,417 3.53
to Rs 2 lakh
" ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in excess of 1,14,07,433 2.53
Rs. 2 lakh.
(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 11,215 0.00
(d) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 0 0.00
(e) Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) 20,23,095 0.45
() Directors and their relatives (excluding independent directors and 2,90,59,456 6.46
nominee directors)
(g) | Any Other (Trusts, HUF, LLPs and Clearing Members 16,94,913 0.38
Sub-Total (B)(2) 15,37,82,019 34.17
Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 44,63,68,611 99.17
TOTAL (A)+(B) 44,63,68,611 99.17
(C) | Non Promoter Non Public Shareholding
(a) | Shares held by Custodians and against which DRs have been issued 0 0.00
(b) Employee Benefit Trust/ Employee Welfare Trust under SEBI (Share 37,47,238 0.83
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity )Regulations, 2021
Sub-Total (C) 37,47,238 0.83
GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 45,01,15,849 100.00

Pursuant to the Scheme, there will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company.

@




13.

14.

15.

16.

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMITY OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE SCHEME WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Auditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, respectively, have confirmed that the accounting
treatment specified in the said Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act.

VALUATION REPORT AND FAIRNESS OPINION

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company has obtained a fair equity share exchange ratio report dated 26
April 2022 issued by SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 128851W) (Registration No. IBBI/
RV-E/06/2020/126) (“Share Exchange Ratio Report”), including clarification(s) thereto, issued from time to time. A
copy of the said Share Exchange Ratio Report including clarification(s) issued thereto are annexed hereto and marked
as Annexure 5.

A copy of the fairness opinion report dated 26" April 2022 issued by M/s SPA Capital Advisors Limited (Registration No.
INMO000010825), SEBI registered Merchant Banker, (“Fairness Opinion”) is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 6.

APPROVALS AND INTIMATIONS IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME

15.1 In terms of Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and under SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665
dated 23™ November 2021 (“SEBI Master Circular”), BSE and NSE, by their letters dated 6 January 2023, have
communicated their observations on the Scheme to the Transferee Company. There are no adverse observations
on the Scheme in the said letters issued by BSE and NSE. Copies of the said observation letters issued by BSE and
NSE to the Transferee Company are annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 7A and Annexure 7B, respectively.
Further, the Transferee Company has not received any complaint relating to the Scheme and “NIL” complaints
report were filed by the Transferee Company with BSE and NSE in terms of the SEBI Master Circular, copies of
which are annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 8A and Annexure 8B, respectively.

15.2 As per comments contained in the above observation letters, details of ongoing adjudication & recovery
proceedings, prosecution initiated and all other enforcement action taken against the Transferee Company, its
promoters and directors, as submitted to the Tribunal, is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 9.

15.3 Acopy of the Scheme has been filed by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company with the jurisdictional
Registrar of Companies.

15.4 The notice of the Meeting along with the copy of the Scheme in the prescribed form, will be served on all
concerned authorities in terms of the Tribunal Order.

DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO OBSERVATION LETTERS DATED 6™ JANUARY 2023 ISSUED
BY BSE AND NSE

16.1 The Appointed Date of the Scheme means the opening of the business hours of 1 April 2022 or such other date
as may be approved by the Hon’ble Tribunal. As far as value of assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company
which are proposed to be taken over by the Transferee Company is concerned, the audited financial statement
of the Transferor Company for the financial year ended as on 315t March 2022 is annexed hereto and marked
as Annexure 10. All the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company, except for inter-company holdings and
balances between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, will be transferred to the Transferee
Company upon effectiveness of the Scheme.



17.

18.

16.2

16.3

In terms of Clause 21 of the Scheme, all costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if
any (save as expressly otherwise agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing the Scheme
and matters incidental thereto, (including stamp duty) shall be borne by the Transferor Company / as mutually
decided amongst the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. The shareholders of the Transferor
Company namely Info Edge (India) Limited and Macritchie Investments Pte. Ltd and the Transferee Company,
have entered into a cost sharing agreement, wherein, Info Edge (India) Limited and Macritchie Investments
Pte. Ltd, have agreed to bear costs (stamp duty and taxes) arising out of or in carrying out and implementing
the Scheme in the ratio of their shareholding in the Transferor Company. Further, Info Edge (India) Limited and
Macritchie Investments Pte. Ltd have also agreed to indemnify the Transferee Company from any and all loss
incurred or suffered by the Transferee Company, so far as such loss arise out of failure of Info Edge (India) Limited
and Macritchie Investments Pte. Ltd failing to bear the said costs in the agreed proportion.

On 15™ April 2021, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company approved
the Scheme of Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and their respective
shareholders (“Previous Scheme”) and the consideration for the Previous Scheme was decided on the similar
principle, wherein, same number of equity shares of the Transferee Company were proposed to be issued to
the shareholders of the Transferor Company (i.e. Info Edge (India) Limited and Macritchie Investments Pte. Ltd),
which the Transferor Company was holding in the Transferee Company. This Previous Scheme was approved at
the time when the equity shares of the Transferee Company were not listed on BSE and NSE. The Previous Scheme
was filed with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench. However, during the pendency of
the Previous Scheme, in the year 2021, the Transferee Company initiated the process of listing its equity shares
on BSE and NSE pursuant to an Initial Public Offer (“IPO”) route. As per the regulatory regime governing the IPO
process, the Previous Scheme had to attain finality prior to the filing of the Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI.
Since, the regulatory process did not permit pursuing the Previous Scheme simultaneously with the IPO process,
therefore, the Previous Scheme had to be withdrawn.

ABRDIGED PROSPECTUS

Abridged prospectus providing information pertaining to the unlisted entity i.e., Transferor Company involved in the
scheme as per the format specified in Part E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated 4 February 2022 is annexed
hereto and marked as Annexure 11.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the electronic copy of following documents will be available for inspection
in the investor section of the website of the Transferee Company at https://www.pbfintech.in/:

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

Certified copy of the Tribunal Order;
Audited financial results of the Transferee Company for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023;

Audited financial statements of the Transferor Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Approved by Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company but are yet to be adopted by the shareholders of the Transferor Company);

Audited financial statements of the Transferor Company for the year ended 31 March 2022;
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company;

Copy of the Scheme;



18.7 Certificate issued by M/s. Beeline Capital Advisors Private Limited , SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, certifying
the accuracy and adequacy of disclosures made in Annexure 11;

18.8 Certificate of the Statutory Auditor of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, respectively,
confirming that the accounting treatment prescribed under the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133 of the
Act and applicable accounting standards; and

18.9 Allother documents displayed on the Transferee Company’s website in terms of the SEBI Master Circular, including
Report of the Audit Committee of the Transferee Company.

Based on the above and considering the rationale of the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company recommend
the Scheme for approval of the Equity Shareholders.

The Directors and KMPs, as applicable, of the Transferee Company and of the Transferor Company, and their relatives do not
have any concern or interest, financially or otherwise, in the Scheme except as shareholders in general.

Place: Mohali
Date: 31t July 2023

Sd/-

Dr. Surekha Thukral

Chairperson appointed by Tribunal
for the Meeting

Registered Office:

Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram - 122 001, Haryana
CIN: L51909HR2008PLC037998

Website: https://www.pbfintech.in/

E-mail: complianceofficer@pbfintech.in

Phone: 0124-4562907

Fax: 0124-4562907




SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
M.AH ESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
WITH
PE FINTECH LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 2013



BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

(i)

(i)

Makesense Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Transferor Company”)
is a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
Transferor Company is incorporated to carry on the business of providing services and
solutions in relation to placement consultancy, personnel recruitment, staffing,
professional hiring and management consultancy to all kinds of persons, firms or
organizations.

PB Fintech Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Transferee Company”) is a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Transferee
Company, inter alig, is an integrated online marketing and consulting company and is
engaged in the business of rendering online marketing and information technology
consulting and support services largely for the financial services industry, including
insurance. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on BSE Limited and
the Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited.

OVERVIEW AND OPERATION OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme (as defined hereinafter) provides for amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter).
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act {os
defined hereinafter) read with Section 2(1B) and other applicable provisions of the Income Tax
Act |as defined hereinafter) and various other matters consequential thereto or otherwise
integrally connected therewith in the manner set out in this Scheme.

RATIOMALE OF THE SCHEME

(i)

(i)

The Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company and will result in the following benefits:

(a) streamlining of the corporate structure;

(b) pooling of resources of the Transferor Company with the resources of the
Transferee Company;

(c) significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances
required at present to be carried out by both the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company;

(d) rationalisation of costs, time and efforts by eliminating multiple record
keeping, administrative functions and consolidation of financials through
legal entity rationalisation; and

(e) reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal
as well as regulatory compliances.

The Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders, employees and the creditors
of each of the Parties (as defined hereingfter).



D.

1.1

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

(i) PART | deals with the definitions of capitalized terms used in this Scheme, the details
of the share capital of the Parties and date of taking effect and implementation of this

Scheme;

(i) Part Il deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company on a going concern basis and discharge of consideration in lieu thereof; and

(iii) PART Il deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to this
Scheme.

PART I

DEFINITIONS, SHARE CAPITAL AND DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS

SCHEME
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, (i) capitalised terms defined by inclusion in quotations and/or parenthesis shall
have the meanings so ascribed; and (ii) the following expressions shall have the meanings
ascribed hereunder:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulations made thereunder;

“Appointed Date” means the opening of the business hours of 1 April 2022 or such other date
as may be approved by the Tribunal;

“Applicable Law"” or "Law” means any applicable national, foreign, provincial, local or other
law including applicable provisions of all (a) constitutions, decrees, treaties, statutes, laws
{including the common law), codes, notifications, rules, regulations, policies, guidelines,
circulars, directions, directives, ordinances or orders of any Appropriate Authority, statutory
authority, court, Tribunal; (b) Permits; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions, judgments,
awards and decrees of or agreements with any Appropriate Authority having jurisdiction over
the Parties, as may be in force from time to time;

“Appropriate Authority” means:

(a) the government of any jurisdiction (including any national, state, municipal or local
government or any political or administrative subdivision thereof] and any
department, ministry, agency, instrumentality, court, Tribunal, central bank,
commission or other authority thereof;

() any public international organisation or supranational body and its institutions,
departments, agencies and instrumentalities;

(c) any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully exercising,
or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, regulatory,
licensing, competition, Tax, importing, exporting or other governmental or quasi-
governmental authority; and



(d) Stock Exchanges;

“Board” in relation to the Parties, means the board of directors of such Party, and shall include
a committee of directors or any person authorized by such board of directors or such
committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining
to this Scheme or any other matter relating thereto;

"“Effective Date" means the last of the dates on which the conditions specified in Clause 20 of
this Scheme are complied with or are waived by the Board of the Parties;

Reference in this Scheme to the date of "coming into effect of this Scheme" or "effectiveness
of this Scheme" or "upon the Scheme becoming effective” shall mean the Effective Date;

“Income Tax Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961;
“INR” means Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of the Republic of India;

“Parties” means collectively, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and
“Party” shall mean each of them, individually;

“Permits” means all consents, licences, permits, certificates, permissions, authorisations,
rights, clarifications, approvals, clearances, confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions,
registrations, filings, whether governmental, statutory, regulatory or otherwise as required
under Applicable Law;

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability partnership, a
limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an
unincorporated organization or an Appropriate Authaority;

“"RoC" means the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the Parties;

“Scheme" or “this Scheme” means this scheme of amalgamation, as modified from time to
time;

“SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

“SEBI Circular® means the circular issued by the SEBI, being Circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23 November 2021, and any amendments
thereof issued pursuant to Regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the SEBI LoDR;

“SEBI LoDR” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
collectively;

“Tax Laws” means all Applicable Laws dealing with Taxes including but not limited to income-
tax, wealth tax, sales tax /value added tax, service tax, goods and services tax, excise duty,
customs duty or any other levy of similar nature;

“Taxation” or “Tax" or "Taxes” means all forms of taxes and statutory, governmental, state,
provincial, local governmental or municipal impositions, duties, contributions and levies and
whether levied by reference to income, profits, book profits, gains, net wealth, asset values,



1.2

21

turnover, added value, goods and service or otherwise and shall further include payments in
respect of or on account of Tax, whether by way of deduction at source, collection at source,
dividend distribution tax, advance tax, minimum alternate tax, goods and services tax or
otherwise or attributable directly or primarily to the respective Parties, or any other Person
and all penalties, charges, costs and interest relating thereto;

“Transferee Company” means PB Fintech Limited, a company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, bearing corporate identification number
L51909HR2008PLCO37998 and having its registered office at Plot No. 119, Sector 44,
Gurugram, Haryana — 122 001;

“Transferor Company” means Makesense Technologies Limited, a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, bearing corporate identification number
U74999HR2010PLCOS2002 and having its registered office at Plot No. 123, Sector-44,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122 001; and

“Tribunal” means the relevant bench of the National Company Law Tribunal having
jurisdiction over the Parties.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

1.2.1 words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

1.2.2 reference to any legislation, statute, regulation, rule, notification or any other
provision of law means and includes references to such legal provisions as amended,
supplemented or re-enacted from time to time, and any reference to a legal provision

shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under such a
statutory provision;

1.2.2  any Person includes that Person's legal heirs, administrators, executors, liquidators,
successars, successors-in-interest and permitted assigns, as the case may be;

1.2.4 headings, sub-headings, titles, sub-titles to clauses, sub-clauses and paragraphs are
for information and convenience only and shall be ignored in construing the same;
and

1.2.5 the words “include” and "including” are to be construed without limitation.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 1 April 2022 is as follows:

Particulars | INR

Authorised Share Capital

2,55,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 25,50,00,000

30,00,000 preference shares of INR 100 each 30,00,00,000
Total 55,50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

12,16,500 equity shares.of INR 10 each 1,21,65,000
Total 1,21,65,000




2.2

3.

4.1

4.2

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company until the date of approval of
the Scheme by the Board of the Transferor Company.

The share capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 1 April 2022 is as follows:

Particulars | INR

Authorised Share Capital

49,05,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each 98,10,00,000

5,50,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 20 each 1,90,00,000
Total 100,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

44,9499, 806 equity shares of INR 2 each 89,85,99,612
Total 89,89,99,612

As on 1 April 2022, the Transferor Company holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each
representing 13.32% of the total paid up share capital of the Transferee Company.

Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company until the date of approval of
the Scheme by the Board of the Transferee Company.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS SCHEME

The Scheme as set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) made as per
Clause 18 of this Scheme, shall become effective from the Appointed Date, but shall be
operative from the Effective Date,

PART Il

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY
WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS

AMALGAMATION AND VESTING OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND ENTIRE BUSINESS OF THE
TRANSFEROR COMPANY

With effect from the Appointed Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and
pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Section 2(1B)
of the Income Tax Act, the Transferor Company shall stand amalgamated with the Transferee
Company as a going concern and all assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed
to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, so as to become as and
from the Appointed Date, the assets and liabilities of the Transferee Company by virtue of
operation of law, and in the manner provided in this Scheme,

In respect of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company which are movable
in nature (including but not limited to all intangible assets) or are otherwise capable of transfer
by delivery or possession or by endorsement, shall stand transferred upon coming into effect
of this Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the
assets and properties of the Transferee Company without requiring any deed or instrument
of conveyance for transfer of the same.



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

With respect to the assets of the Transferor Company other than those referred to in Clause
4.2 above, including all rights, title and interests in the agreements (including agreements for
lease or license of the properties), investments in shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other
securities, sundry debtors, claims from customers or otherwise, outstanding loans and
advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances and
deposits, if any, with any Appropriate Authority, customers and other Persons, whether or not
the same is held in the name of the Transferor Company, the same shall, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the Transferee Company, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation
of law as transmission in favour of the Transferee Company.

All the brands, trademarks of the Transferor Company including registered and unregistered
trademarks along with all rights of commercial nature including attached goodwill, title,
interest, labels and brand registrations, copyrights trademarks and all such other industrial
and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature shall stand transferred to the Transferee
Company by operation of law. The Transferee Company shall take such actions as may be
necessary and permissible to get the same transferred and/or registered in the name of the
Transferee Company.

Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, debentures, loans, obligations and
duties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date shall, without any further act or
deed, be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Transferee
Company to the extent that they are outstanding as on the Appointed Date and the Transferee
Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same,

If the Transferor Company is entitled to any unutilized credits (including accumulated losses
and unabsorbed depreciation, book loss and book depreciation, minimum alternate tax
credit), benefits under the state or central fiscal / investment incentive schemes and policies
or concessions under any Tax law or Applicable Law, the Transferee Company shall be entitled,
as an integral part of the Scheme, to claim such benefit or incentives or unutilised credits as
the case may be without any specific approval or permission. Without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing, in respect of unutilized input credits of goods and service tax of
the Transferor Company, the same shall be transferred to the Transferee Company in
accordance with the Applicable Law.

On and from the Effective Date and till such time that the name(s) of the bank accounts of the
Transferor Company have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate the bank accounts of the Transferor
Company in the name(s) of the Transferor Company and for such time as may be determined
to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All cheques and other negotiable instruments,
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Transferor Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the
Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, if presented by
the Transferee Company.

Permits, including the benefits attached thereto, of the Transferor Company shall be
transferred to the Transferee Company from the Appointed Date, without any further act,
instrument or deed and shall be appropriately mutated or endorsed by the Appropriate
Authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Transferee Company as if the same were
originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company and the
Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms, obligations and duties thereunder, and the
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rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee Company to carry on
the operations of the Transferor Company without any hindrance, whatsoever;

All contracts where the Transferor Company is a party, shall stand transferred to, novated and
vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective. The absence
of any formal amendment or agreement, which may be required by a third party to effect such
transfer, novation and vesting shall not affect the operation of the foregoing sentence. The
Transferee Company shall, wherever necessary, enter into and/or execute deeds, writings,
confirmations or novation to all such contracts, if necessary, in order to give formal effect to
the provisions of this Clause.

Provided that, upon this Scheme coming into effect, all inter-company transactions including
balances, loans, contracts under whatsoever nomenclature executed or entered into by or
inter-se between the Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company stand cancelled with
effect from the Effective Date, without any further deed or action and without any further
liability or claim against one another.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing sub-clauses of this Clause, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company may execute any and all instruments or documents
and do all the acts, deeds and things as may be required, including executing and filing of
necessary particulars andf/or modification(s) of charge, necessary applications, notices,
intimations or letters with any Appropriate Authority or Person to give effect to the Scheme.
Any procedural requirements required to be fulfilled solely by the Transferor Company upon
the Scheme becoming effective, shall be fulfilled by the Transferee Company as if it were the
duly constituted attorney of the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company shall take such
actions as may be necessary and permissible to get the assets, Permits and contracts of the
Transferor Company transferred and/ or registered in its name.

EMPLOYEES

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee
Company undertakes to engage, without any interruption in service, all employees of the
Transferor Company on terms and conditions no less favourable than those on which they are
engaged by the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to
abide by any agreement / settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or deemed to have
been entered into by the Transferor Company with any of the aforesaid employees or union
representing them. The Transferee Company agrees that the services of all such employees
with the Transferor Company prior to the transfer shall be taken into account for the purposes
of all existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible, including for the purpose
of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral / terminal benefits.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid employees in the
existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members,
will be transferred respectively to such provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
funds nominated by the Transferee Company and/or such new provident fund, gratuity fund
and superannuation fund to be established in accordance with Applicable Law and caused to
be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by the Transferee Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, cause of actions, appeal or other legal, quasi-judicial, arbitral or other
administrative proceedings of whatever nature (hereinafter called the "Proceedings of the
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Transferor Company”) by or against the Transferor Company pending on the Effective Date,
the same shall not abate, be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of
the amalgamation or of anything contained in this Scheme, but the Proceedings of the
Transferor Company may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee
Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme
had not been made. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company may initiate any
legal proceeding for and on behalf of the Transferor Company.

From the Appointed Date and until the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall defend
all legal proceedings, other than in the ordinary course of business, with the advice and
instructions of the Transferee Company.

TAXES / DUTIES [ CESS

The Scheme has been drawn up to comply with and fall within the definition and conditions
relating to "Amalgamation” as specified under section 2{1B} of the Income Tax Act and other
applicable provision of Income Tax Act, as amended. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme
are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said section of the
Income Tax Act, at a later date, including Transferee from an amendment of law or for any
other reason whatsoever, the Scheme shall stand modified/amended/altered to the extent
determined necessary to comply with and fall within definition and conditions relating to
"Amalgamation” as specified in Income Tax Act. In such an event, the clauses which are
inconsistent shall be read down or if the need arises, be deemed to be deleted and such
modification / reading down or deemed deletion shall however not affect the accounting
treatment specified in Clause 10 and other parts of the Scheme.

Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, by operation of law pursuant to the order of the
Tribunal:

7.2.1 Taxes of whatsoever nature including advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular
assessment taxes, tax deducted at source, dividend distribution tax, minimum
alternative tax, if any, paid by the Transferor Company shall be treated as paid by the
Transferee Company and it shall be entitled to claim the credit, refund, adjustment
for the same as may be applicable.

7.2.2  Any tax liabilities under the Tax Laws related to the business of the Transferor
Company to the extent provided for or not provided for or covered by tax provision
in the accounts made as on the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Transferee
Company.

7.2.3  If the Transferor Company are entitled to any incentives under incentive schemes and
policies under Tax Laws, all such incentives under all such incentive schemes and
policies shall be and stand vested in the Transferee Company.

7.2.4 The Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise and file its income tax
returns and other statutory returns, even beyond the due date, if required, including
tax deducted / collected at source returns, service tax returns, sales tax / value added
tax / goods and service tax returns, as may be applicable and has expressly reserved
the right to make such provision in its returns and to claim refunds, advance tax
credits, credit of tax deducted at source or credit of foreign Taxes paid / withheld, if
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any, as may be required for the purposes of, or consequent to, implementation of the
Scheme.

7.2.5 Al tax assessment proceedings / appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the
Transferor Company pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date shall be continued
and/or enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the Transferor Company. As and
from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or
against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would
or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate or be discontinued nor
be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme,

7.2.6  Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all tax compliances under any Tax Laws
by the Transferor Company on or after Appointed Date shall be deemed to be made
by the Transferee Company.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act,
deed, consent or instrument, issue and allot its shares on a proportionate basis to
shareholders of the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date, as under:

5,98,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid up of the Transferee Company in the
proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders in the Transferor Company™

The shares to be issued pursuant to this Clause will be referred to as “New Shares”,

The New Shares shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and
articles of association of the Transferee Company and shall rank pori passu in all respects with
the existing shares of Transferee Company, as the case may be, including with respect to
dividend, bonus, rights shares, voting rights and other corporate benefits attached to the New
Shares.

The issue and allotment of the Mew Shares is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to
have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further
act on the part of the Transferee Company or the Transferor Company or their shareholders
and as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Law as may be
applicable, were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the shareholders of the
Transferee Company and/or the Transferor Company to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be
their consent / approval for the issue and allotment of the Mew Shares.

For the purpose of the allotment of the New Shares pursuant to this Scheme, in case any
shareholder’s holding in any of the Transferor Company is such that the shareholder becomes
entitled to a fraction of an equity share of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company
shall not issue fractional shares to such shareholder but shall consolidate all such fractions
and round up the aggregate of such fractions to the next whole number and issue consolidated
equity shares to a trustee (nominated by the Transferee Company in that behalf), who shall
hold such equity shares, with all additions or accretions thereto, in trust for the benefit of the
respective shareholders to whom they belong for the specific purpose of selling such equity
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shares in the market at such price or prices and at any time within a period of 90 days from
the date of allotment of New Shares and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of
the expenses incurred and applicable income tax) to the respective shareholders in the same
proportion of their fractional entitlements. Any fractional entitlements from such net
proceeds shall be rounded off to the next Rupee. It is clarified that any such distribution shall
take place only on the sale of all the equity shares of the Transferee Company pertaining to
the fractional entitlements. Subject to Applicable Laws, the New Shares that are to be issued
in terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialised form.

In the event, the concerned Parties restructure their share capital by way of share split /
consolidation [ issue of bonus shares or any other corporate action during the pendency of
the Scheme, the consideration set out in Clause 8.1 shall be adjusted accordingly to consider
the effect of such corporate action without requirement of any further approval from the
Appropriate Authority.

The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of New Shares on the Stock Exchanges in terms
of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may be applicable. The
Mew Shares, pursuant to the Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depository system till listing/
trading permission is given by the designated Stock Exchange. The shares of the Transferee
Company issued in lieu of the locked-in shares held by the Transferor Company will be subject
to lock-in for the remaining period.

The Transferee Company shall, to the extent required, alter, increase or reclassify its
autharized share capital in order to issue New Shares. Further, the Transferee Company shall
comply with the provisions of the Act to alter, increase or reclassify its authorized share
capital.

It is clarified that the approval of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to this Scheme
shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also to the consequential alteration of its
memorandum of association and articles of association pursuant to Clause 8 of this Scheme
and the Transferee Company shall not be required to seek separate consent / approval of its
shareholders for such alteration, as required under Sections 13, 14, 42, 61, 64, and other
applicable provisions of the Act.

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EXISTING SHARES OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all shares held by the Transferar Company in the share
capital of the Transferee Company (held either directly or through its nominees), shall stand
cancelled, without any further act or deed as an integral part of this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified and provided that
cancellation of the share capital of the Transferee Company in terms of Clause 9.1 above, shall
be effected as an integral part of this Scheme. Such cancellation of the share capital of the
Transferee Company in terms of Clause 9.1, does not involve either diminution of liability in
respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital of the Transferee
Company. Further, since the aforesaid cancellation is an integral part of the Scheme in
accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the provisions of Section 66
of the Act are not applicable. It is further clarified and provided that notwithstanding such
cancellation of share capital of the Transferee Company in terms of Clause 9.1, the Transferee
Company shall not be required to add "And Reduced" as suffix to its name.
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ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Motwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other clause in the Scheme, the
Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company in its
books of accounts in accordance with applicable accounting principles (Indian Accounting
Standards 109, Financial instruments and other relevant Ind AS standards) as prescribed under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {"Ind AS") as notified under Section
133 of the Act, as may be amended from time to time and on the date as determined under
Ind AS.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the resolutions / power of attorneys executed by the
Transferor Company, as are considered necessary by the Board of the Transferor Company,
and that are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting
and be considered as resolutions and power of attorney passed / executed by the Transferee
Company, and if any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved under the provisions
of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions, then such limits as are considered
necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company shall be added to the limits, if any, under
like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company and shall constitute the new aggregate
limits for each of the subject matters covered under such resolutions / power of attarneys for
the purpose of Transferee Company.

COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, and as an integral part of this Scheme, the authaorised
share capital of the Transferor Company shall stand merged into and combined with the
authorised share capital of the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme and the
authorised share capital of the Transferee Company shall stand increased without any further
act, instrument or deed on the part of Transferee Company including payment of stamp duty
and registration fee or filing fee to the RoC on such combined authorised share capital and
the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Transferee Company
(relating to the authorized share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,
be and stand altered, modified and amended, and the consent of the shareholders of the
Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of
effecting this amendment, and no further resolution(s) under the applicable provisions of the
Act would be required to be separately passed, as the case may be, and for this purpose the
stamp duty and fees paid on the authorized capital of the Transferor Company shall be utilized
and applied to the increased authorized share capital of the Transferee Company and there
would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or fee by the Transferee
Company for increase in the authorised share capital to that extent. Accordingly, the
authorised share capital of the Transferee Company from the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company shall be a sum of Rs. 1,55,50,00,000 (Indian Rupees
one hundred and fifty five crores and fifty lakh only) divided into 61,80,00,000 (sixty one crore
and eighty lakh) equity shares of Rs. 2/- (Indian Rupees two only) each and preference share
capital divided into 9,50,000 (nine lakh fifty thousand) compulsory convertible preference
shares of Rs. 20 (Indian Rupees twenty only) each and 30,00,000 (thirty lakh) compulsory
convertible preference shares of Rs. 100/- (Indian Rupees one hundred only) each.
Consequentially, Clause V of the memorandum of association of the Transferee Company shall
without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended, to reflect
the increased combined authorised share capital pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61, 64, and other
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applicable provisions of the Act and accordingly and substituted by the following Clause upon
the Scheme becoming effective:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.1,55,50,00,000 {Rupees One hundred and
Fifty Five crores and Fifty Lakh only) divided into 61,80,00,000 (sixty one crore and eighty lakh)
equity shares of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two only) each and 31,90,00,000 (thirty one crores ninety lakh)
divided into 8,50,000 (nine lakh fifty thousand) compulsorily convertible preference shares of
Rs. 20/- {Rupees Twenty only) each and 30,00,000 (thirty lakh) compulsorily convertible
preference shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) each,”

It is clarified that the approval of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to the Scheme
shall be deemed to be their consent / approval also to the alteration of the memorandum and
articles of association of the Transferee Company as may be required under the Act.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
winding up and the Board and any committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall
without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand discharged. On and from the
Effective Date, the name of the Transferor Company shall be struck off from the records of
the RoC.

PART IN
GEMNERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

The Parties shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim and/or final, to
their respective shareholders prior to the Effective Date in the ordinary course of business.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends, whether
interim or final, are enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on
any member of the Transferor Company or Transferee Company to demand or claim any
dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of the
Board of the Transferor Company or Transferee Company and subject, wherever necessary,
to the approval of the shareholders of the Transferor Company or Transferee Company.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The vesting of the undertaking of the Transferor Company as above and the continuance of
proceedings by or against the Transferor Company shall not affect any transaction or
proceedings already concluded on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date in
accordance with this Scheme, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and
adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor Company in respect
thereto as done and executed on behalf of the Transferee Company.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS FROM APPOINTED DATE UP TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE:

The Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the
Effective Date:

16.1.1 shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall carry on its business and activities
and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand
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possessed of the assets for and on account of, and in trust for the Transferee
Company;

all profits or income arising or accruing to the Transferor Company and all Taxes paid
thereon (including but not limited to advance tax, tax deducted at source, minimum
alternate tax, dividend distribution tax, securities transaction tax, taxes withheld /
paid in a foreign country) or losses arising or incurred by the Transferor Company
shall, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits or income, Taxes or
losses, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company; and

all loans raised and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferor Company
after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, shall, subject to the terms of
this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of
the Transferee Company in which the undertaking of the Transferor Company shall
vest in terms of this Scheme and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective
Date, shall also, without any further act or deed be and be deemed to become the
debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company with effect from the date of approval of the Scheme by Board of the
Parties and until the Effective Date:

16.2.1

16.2.2

16.2.3

shall carry on its business with reasonable diligence and business prudence and in the
same manner as it had been doing hitherto, and shall not undertake any additional
financial commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur any
other liabilities-or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities, letters
of comfort or commitment either for themselves or on behalf of its respective
affiliates or associates or any third party, or sell, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage
or encumber or deal in any of its properties [ assets, except:

(a) when the same is expressly provided in this Scheme; or

{b) when the same is in the ordinary course of business as carried on, as on the
date of filing of this Scheme with the Tribunal; or

(c) when written consent of the Transferee Company has been obtained in this
regard.

except by consent of the Transferee Company, or except pursuant to any prior
commitment, obligation or arrangement existing or undertaken by the Transferor
Company as on the date of sanction of this Scheme by the Board, or except as
contemplated in this Scheme, pending sanction of this Scheme, the Transferor
Company shall not make any change in its capital structure either by way of any
increase (by issue of equity shares, bonus shares, convertible debentures or
otherwise), decrease, reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-
organisation or in any other manner, which would have the effect of re-organisation
of capital of the Transferor Company; and

shall not alter or substantially expand its business, or undertake (i) any material
decision in relation to its business and affairs and operations other than that in the
ordinary course of business; (ii) any agreement or transaction (other than an
agreement or transaction in the ordinary course of business); and (i) any new
business, or discontinue any existing business or change the capacity of facilities other
than that in the ordinary course of business, except with the written concurrence of
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The Transferee Company.

From the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall carry on and shall be entitled to carry
on the business of the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to
the Appropriate Authority and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as
are necessary under any Law for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee
Company may require to carry on the business of the Transferor Company and to give effect
to the Scheme.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled to credit the Tax paid including credit of the tax
deducted at source in relation to The Transferor Company, for the period between the
Appointed Date and the Effective Date.

For the purpose of giving effect to the amalgamation order passed under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Act in respect of this Scheme by the Appropriate
Authority, the Transferee Company shall, at any time pursuant to the order approving this
Scheme, be entitled to get the change in the legal right(s) recorded upon the amalgamation
of the Transferor Company, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The Transferee Company is and shall always be deemed to have been authorized to
execute any pleadings, applications or forms, as may be required to remove any difficulties
and facilitate and carry out any formalities or compliances as are necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme.

APPLICATION TO TRIBUNAL

The Parties shall, as may be required, make applications and/or petitions under Sections 230
to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act to the Appropriate Authority for
sanction of this Scheme and all matters ancillary or incidental thereto.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

On behalf of the Parties, the Boards of the respective Parties, may consent jointly but not
individually, to any modifications or amendments of the Scheme and without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing, any modification to the Scheme invelving withdrawal of any Party
to the Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, or to any conditions or limitations
that the Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered
necessary, desirable or appropriate by both of them (i.e. the Boards of the Parties) and solve
all difficulties that may arise for carrying out the Scheme and do all acts, deeds and things
necessary for putting the Scheme into effect.

For the purpose of giving.effect to this Scheme or to any modification thereof, the Boards of
the Parties may jointly but not individually, give and are jointly authorised to give such
directions including directions for settling any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise
and such determination or directions, as the case may be, shall be binding on Parties, in the
same manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS AND REVOCATION/WITHDRAWAL OF THIS SCHEME

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, each Party (by their respective Board of
Directors or such other person or persons, as the respective Board of Directors may authorise)
shall be at liberty to withdraw from this Scheme in case any condition or alteration imposed



19.2

19.3

20.

201

21.

22,

by any authority is unacceptable to them or as may otherwise be deemed expedient or
necessary.

In the event of any of the sanctions and approvals not being obtained and/or the Scheme not
being sanctioned by the Tribunal, and/or the order or orders not being passed as aforesaid on
or before a date as mutually agreed by the Parties, this Scheme shall become null and void
and each Party shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and/ or in
connection with this Scheme.

In the event of revocation/ withdrawal of the Scheme under Clause 19.1 or 19.2 above, no
rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se amongst Parties or their
respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and except in
respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right,
liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be
governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or in
accordance with the Applicable Law and as agreed between the Parties and in such case, each
Party shall bear its own costs, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE SCHEME

Unless otherwise decided by the Boards of the Parties, this Scheme shall be conditional upon
and subject to:

20.1.1 Obtaining no-objection letter(s) from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the Scheme
under Regulation 37 of the SEBI LoDR;

20.1.2 The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such
classes of Persons including the respective shareholders and/or creditors of the
Parties, as may be directed by the Tribunal; and

20.1.3 The sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.
COSTS AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, Taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly
otherwise agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme and
matters incidental thereto, (including stamp duty) shall be borne by the Transferor Company
{ as mutually decided amongst the Parties.

MISCELLANEOUS

On the approval of the Scheme by the respective members of the Parties pursuant to Section
230 of the Act, it shall be deemed that the said members have also accorded all relevant
consents under any other provisions of the Act, including Sections 13, 14, 61, 62(1)(c) and 64
of the Act, to the extent the same may be considered applicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PE Fintech Limited
(Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its
associate companies (refer Note 27 to the attached consolidated financial statements), which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

2, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate
companies as at March 31, 2023, and consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of loss
and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate companies in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated finaneial statements in India in terms of the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the
Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 15 and 16 of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. '

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to the following emphasis of matter paragraph included in the audit report
on the financial statements of Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Holding Company) reproduced as under;

“We draw your attention to Note 24(a) to the financial statements regarding management assessment
with respect to inspections of the books of account and records of the Company carried out by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“IRDAI") to examine compliance with
relevant laws and regulations for various financial years and submission of management responses in
respect of the inspection reports issued by IRDAI The exact impact on the financial statements will
b;_atl;l:m on the conclusion of the proceedings by the IRDAIL Our opinion is not modified in respect
o matter.”

Note 24(a) as described above corresponds to Note 24(i)(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

ice Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. &, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyher City, Gurugram - 122 002
+91 (124) 4620000, F: +91 (124) 4620620

Registered office and Hoad office: 11-A, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Suchela Bhawan, Gate Ma 2, 151 Floor, Mew Dl - 110002

Prece Walprhoune (8 Partnaecihip Fen) corverted nlo Price Walerhauss Charered Accounbants LLP |5 Limiled Lastslily Pacirdiahio with LLP idenbity na: LLPTN AAC-8001)
walh ollack from July 2%, 2004, Post s converson 1o Pice Wabihouse Charoned Ancountants LLP, its ICA] regstrabeon nuamibier 15 01 275AMMNS0000E BRAI regislration
numbser badore conversion was 0127548



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pagez2 of 7

Key Audit Matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have reported a key
audit matter in our report of even date on the audit of standalone financial statements of the Holding
Company with respect to assessment of carrying value of investment in subsidiaries. We have
determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report on consolidated
financial statements.

Other Information

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the
consolidated finanecial statements and our and other auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate
action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

7. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its associate companies in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its associate companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid. '
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8,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate companies are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and of its associate companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate
companies are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associate companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

11.

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion:
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

# Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate
companies to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate companies to cease
to continue as a going concern.

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. '
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12,

13.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group and its associate companies to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent anditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

- From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

15.

We did not audit the financial statements,/ financial information of 4 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements/ financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 3,770.22 lakhs and net assets of Rs.
2,376.13 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 2,195.45 lakhs, total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 267.00 lakhs and net cash flows
amounting to Rs. (0.40) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. Also, we did not audit the consolidated financial statements/ financial
information of 3 subsidiaries, whose consolidated financial statements/ financial information reflect
total assets of Rs. 16,502.08 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 13,875.52 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total
revenue of Rs. 5,782.91 lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. (4,760.17) lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. (5,151.79) lakhs
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company. The abovementioned financial statements/consolidated financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information
insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors,
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16. We did not audit the financial statements of the Etechaces Employees Stock Option Plan Trust (the
“Trust”) included in the standalone financial statements of the Company, which constitute total assets
of Rs. 342.68 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 6.03 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 7.95
lakhs, net excess of income over expenditure of Rs. 6.15 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.
134.57 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial
information have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the Trust, is based solely on the report of the other
auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. Asrequired by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
report that there are no gqualifications or adverse remarks included by the respective auditors in
their CARO 2020 reports issued in respect of the standalone financial statements of the companies
which are included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

18. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors, including the maintenance of
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on
servers physically located in India. However, in the absence of adequate evidence, we were
unable to verify whether the backup is maintained on a daily basis during the period August 11,
2022 to March 31, 2023.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, we draw
reference to our comment in paragraph 18(b) above.
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to cur
separate report in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates — Refer Note 24(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group and its associate companies has long term contracts as at March 31, 2023 for
which there are no material foreseeable losses. The Group and its associates did not have
any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023,

iii. During the year ended March 31, 2023, there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sourees or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries/associates to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
and associates which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused
us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11{e) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies, have not declared
or paid any dividend during the year.
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vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in
the accounting software used by the Group and associate companies incorporated in India, is
applicable to the Group and associate companies only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

19. The Group and its associate companies incorporated in India have paid/ provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

OWV A_ZZ{-
ugata Mukherjee

Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084 BGYFRO6G400

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

L

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal finaneial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section
143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements is not applicable to 6 subsidiaries incorporated in India namely Docprime
Technologies Private Limited, Icall Support Services Private Limited, Accurex Marketing and Consulting
Private Limited, PB Marketing and Consulting Private Limited, PB Financial Account Aggregator Private
Limited and Myloaneare Ventures Private Limited pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13
June 2017.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finanecial Controls

2,

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary eompanies and its associate
companies, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is
applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be preseribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
prineiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that eould have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sougata Mukherjee

Partner

Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRO6400

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIARILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(% in Lakhs)
As al As al
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Amditedy {Audited)

|Assels
Mon current assels
Property, plant and equipment 6.840.91 359311
Right-ol-use assets 20,13728 1441847
Intangible assels 579.53 260.39
Goodwill 37072 2,217.90
Financial assets
= Invesiments 598433 4,557.00
- Loans for financial activilies T4T.11 -
= Onher financial assets 1,62022.35 140369
Deferred tax assets (Met) 1.00 689
Current Tax Assets (Nel) 12,893.14 791595
Other non-current assets 204.10 20.96
Total non-current assets (A) 2,13,180.47 34.394.45
Current asseis
Financial assels
- Investments 56,225.08 32,750, 48
- Trade receivables 67,730.94 36,057.28
- Cash and cash equivalenis 723404 16,739.78
- Other bank balances 69,037,965 33328381
- Loans 67.23 47.31
- Loans for financial activities 480,43 -
- Other financial assets 20751837 1,012,835 86
Other current assets 3.927.97 5,409.52
Total current assels (B) 4,12,222.02 557, 154.04
Total assels (A+HE) 62540249 5.91,548.49
Equily And Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 5,002.33 £,990.00
Other equity 5,38,627.64 53217582
Mon-controlling interest £49.72 -
Total equity (C) 54847969 SAL165.82 |
Linhilities
|Mon carrent liabilities
Financial liabi
- Lease Liahility 19.375.41 14,149.45
Met Employee benefit obligations 243582 245422
Total nan current liabilities (D) 21,831.23 16,643.67
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
- Lease Liability 3.283.51 1,786.52
- Trade payables 3061036 1981947
- Other financial liabilities 1188577 117891
|Met Employes benefit obligations 182414 2,047 .52
Cither cusrent liabilities 6,487.79 250458
Total current liabilities (E) 55,001.57 33,730.00
Taotal equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 6,25.402.49 5.91,548.49
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 1013

{2 Lakhs)
| arter ended Vear ended
|Parmiculars I 31, W0Y | Mardh 31, 3012
Heler ate 11 Usaudised Feeber note 13 Audited Asdaed
1 |Ingame
Renerms: fiom opeiate L6 AT 6100039 Sz 185,471 LAY ARRO1L
Oiber emtome LR Pk [ 308693 I K10 12558 05
Total Incame (1) 503550 4705098 EEATEEY] LEL 8RR 155001 A
n
bemalit sprase ECANEAL 35,648 53 ATA2250 .53, 96000 125354000
[ iadi isalion CXpec 174931 175203 (B ] BIEL1T 4,14397
\Advertising and pioerdbion cipenicl 4555492 1935092 3E0T4TT L3726 Th i 15
Hetwork and micract Cypemics. 15595 TAYIAE [RlLE R0 5 LR
Dither cxpenicy 6,832 6,199 4 I 125742 ILTTL54
Finases covt 1651 55626 Al pA I 1356, 7R
Tetsl Expeases (11 SOl ThAITER LINHT 04BN 248,543 14 |
100 |Loss before share of profiu(less) of meaciaies, exceptional e and tas (1-11) FETEA L | (32,000 51 8 sl (Eaaasasy
IV |Shara of profitTloss] of assaciater A0S 2 ll.dﬁT BT [EEES |
¥ |Loss befare tax (1l1=1V) [CXERIT 8,759.64)] (31010873 [TRTRT
V1 |Ingsms Lax cupemic:
Ciarrenl Ly @ LEL] {an o) 146 [46.E7)
|Diefermed mis L] (005N (1.0 {9.5K {1.09)
VI | Loerin Tar thee guasses/year [V-V1) Ay mﬂ {31,360.81 23,290 30|
WL [her comprehensive imcoma o)
et that mary e reclngificd 1o peali or ks
- Exchange dilferences on tanslation of lofagn operations Eaky T4 [E1 [TLEL]
- Changes m the Fair valoe of debl iastruments at FYOCT (R s e A
- Inenrme b relsting o these ilems L8] - - -
liemns thay willl pod b seclassibod w0 peolil oo las
« Share of othor comprobensng incomo low) of amocisics - - 047 LT
=B ol pad cmipk Bemc i obligations | Gas{ Lom]| 306537y 1T [ARERC Y {14125
» I tax relafing 1o dese iems 0.06 {1.3%) (1IN @21
Totad sibser comprehensive iscome{lon), mel ol ineome 123 for the quarten/year 3193 10524 5% WIT
IX |Totsl comprehensive incomelen) for the quarterfyear ([ VIR+ Y100} [T [l | (31 AS
L i1 wivribwimble fa:
Orrners of PB Fimicch Limited [#95.09) [E7T96I} [ Rock ) {4E,722.03) (E3,290.30)
ben-centolling inces {3935 [prE1T = 171.89) o
Diker el dive | T I oy [T
Ounsrs of PO Fimlech Limasd [MENIY 1671 3% T4 19
Honconirolling inkcreis (LAY (LATY - {254y .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF AUDITED SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

These Consolidated Audited Financial Results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group™) and
its interest in associates have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment
thereafter.

These Consolidated Audited Financial Results include the following entities:

Relationship | Name of the entities

Parent PB Fintech Limited

Subsidiaries | {a) Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited

(b) Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

{c) Icall Support Services Private Limited

(d) Accurex Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

() PB Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

(£} Docprime Technologies Private Limited

(z) PB Fintech FZ-LLC

(h) PB Financial Account Aggregators Private Limited

(i) MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited {Associate till June 07, 2022)
{j) Visit Internet Services Private Limited {Indirect)

(k) MLC Finotech Private Limited (Indirect)

(1) ZPHIN Computer Systems and Software Designing — Sole Proprietorship L.L.C. (Indirect)

Associate {a) Visit Health Private Limited {Indirect)
{b) YENP Marketing Management LLC (Indirect)

These Consolidated Audited Financial Resulis have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 22, 2022,

Mo Stock option has been granted during the quarter ended March 31, 2023, however the company has granted
14,58,364 stock options during the year ended March 31, 2023 under the employee stock option scheme — ESOP
Scheme 2021. Share based payment expense for the quarter ended and year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs. 9,604.64
lakhs and Rs. 54,235.85 lakhs respectively.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company had completed its initial public offer ("IPO") of 58,262,397
equity shares of face value of ¥ 2 each at an issue price of ¥ 980 per share, comprising fresh issue of 38,265,306
equity shares and offer for sale of 19,997,091 equity shares. Pursuant to the [PO, the equity shares were listed on
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited on November 15, 2021,

The Company received an amount of Z 361,210.80 lakhs [net off [PO expenses] from proceeds out of fresh issue of
equity shares for utilizing various objects stated in the prospectus. Out of the aforesaid amount, ¥ 77,533.10 lakhs
were utilized for 'Enhancing visibility and awareness of the brands', ¥ 3,642.70 lakhs were utilized for MNew
opportunities to expand growth initiatives to increase the consumer base', ¥ 4,040.40 lakhs were utilized for
'Funding strategic investments and acquisitions' and ¥ 76,210.80 lakhs were utilized for "General corporate
purposes’. The unutilized amount of T 199,783.80 lakhs was invested in fixed deposits and other bank accounts
maintained with scheduled commercial banks.

The Company in its board meeting held on April 26, 2022 approved merger of Makesense Technologies Limited
with the Company pursuant to section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Compromises, arrangements and amalgamations) rules, 2016. The Merger application was file;
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Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited on May 18, 2022, Further, the Joint Application before the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (Hon'ble Tribunal), Chandigarh Bench, under the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 of the Act was filed on May 03, 2023.

The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“IRDAI™) had carried out certain inspections of
the books of account and records of the Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited (“wholly owned
subsidiary™ or “Policybazaar”) to examine compliance with relevant laws and regulations for various financial
years and issued its reports, requesting for responses to the observations stated therein. Policybazaar submitied its
responses to the IRDAIL subsequent to which IRDALI issued show cause notices in respect of the above inspection
reports and certain other matters. In the assessment of the management, supported by legal advice, as applicable,
the above matters are not likely to have a significant impact on the continuing operations of the Policybazaar as
well as these consolidated financial results. The Company also reviewed the same in the light of IND AS 37 and
concluded that at this stage a reliable estimate cannot be made of the possible obligation and the exact impact will
be known on the conclusion of the proceedings by the IRDAL '

The Company is an electronic commerce operator (“operator™) under the Central Goods and Services Tax Act,
2017 (“CGST Act™). The said Act requires every operator, not being an agent, to collect an amount, calculated at
the prescribed rate, on the value of taxable supplies made through it where the consideration for such supplies is
collected by the operator. In the assessment of the management supported by legal advice, the aforesaid
requirement of collecting tax at source is not applicable to the Company as the Company is not engaged in
collecting money on behalf of the insurers and the money flows directly from the customers to the insurance
company through a nodal bank account. In view of the management, the Company merely facilitates transfer of
insurance premium to the insurance companies and is required to ensure transfer of the full amount of such
premium, without the ability to deduct any amounts paid by the customers. Accordingly, the above matter is not
likely to have any impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial results, The
Company made representation to the Government authorities and the Principal Regulator (“IRDAI"™) in the carlier
years, seeking clarification and exemption from applicability of the above section on insurance intermediaries.

During the current year, certain vulnerabilities were identified in a part of the Policybazaar’s web application
platform (Policybazaar.com) and the same were subject to illegal and unauthorised access. The management
initiated necessary steps and remedial measures including regulatory filings of the incidence. In the assessment of
the management supported by the independent expert's report, there is no impact of above incidence on these
consolidated financial resulis and continuity of business operations of the Company/Group.

PB Fintech invested ¥ 3,658 Lakhs in compulsorily convertible preference shares of MyLoanCare Ventures Private
Limited (“Myloancare™) to increase its stake to 70.10%, from 24.93%, on a fully diluted basis, thereby acquiring
controlling interest in Myloancare w.e.f. June 08, 2022. Mecessary adjustments have been made in the financial
results.

. Docprime Technologies Private Limited (“Docprime™) invested ¥ 74.82 Lakhs in equity shares of Visit Health

Private Limited (“Visit Health™) to increase its stake to 31.62%, from 30.46%, on a fully diluted basis w.e.f.
February 13, 2023. Mecessary adjustments have been made in the financial results.

The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect
of the full financial year and the unaudited year to date figures up to December 31, 2022, being the date of the third
quarter of the financial year.
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13. The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect
of the full financial year and the unaudited vear to date figures up to December 31, 2021, being the date of the third
quarter of the financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

f}‘ \
ashish Dahlya

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00706336

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 22, 2023



Price Watérhnuse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PR
Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information and which include the financial statements of Etechaces
Employees Stock Option Plan Trust (the “Trust™).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act . Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our andit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower - B, DLF Cyber City, Gurugram - 122 002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

",
To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Pagezof 6

Key audit matter

Assessment of carrying value of Investment in
subsidiaries [Refer Note 2(h), 2(1) and 6(a) to the
standalone financial statements])

The Company has made investments in various
unlisted subsidiaries, which are carried at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The
carrying value of investments as on March 31, 2023
is Rs. 370,663.65 lakhs.

The Company has performed an assessment of
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the
investments as on the balance sheet date by
estimating their recoverable value, using the
discounted cash flow model with the involvement of
a valuation expert engaged by the management.
Based on its assessment, the management has
concluded that no provision for impairment was
necessary as at March 31, 2023,

We have considered this to be a key audit matter as
the carrying value of the investments is significant
to the standalone financial statements and the
assessment of recoverable value using discounted
cash flows forecast involves significant management
judgement in respect of certain key inputs like
determining an appropriate discount rate, future
cash flows and terminal growth rate.

Other Information

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our audit procedures included the following:

- Understanding and testing the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls around
assessment of carrying amount of investments,

- Reading minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors/ Audit Committee and verifying
compliances with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

- Evaluating the independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert
engaged by the management;

- Reading the report prepared by the external
valuation expert engaged by the management and
understanding and evaluating the key inputs and
assumptions underlying the valuation and
performing sensitivity analysis,

- With the involvement of auditor’s valuation
expert, assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation model including independent assessment
of the assumptions underlying cash flow
projections, discount rate, terminal value ete.

- Evaluating the adequaey and appropriateness of
the disclosures made in the financial statements.
Based on our procedures performed above, the
management's assessment of the carrving value of
investments is considered appropriate.

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the finanecial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governanee and take appropriate action as applicable under

the relevant laws and regulations.
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To the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial
statements

b.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenanee of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranece is a high level of assuranee but is not a guarantee that an aundit
condueted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone

“financial statements.
. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

seepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal eontrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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11.

12,

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the andit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

13.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Trust included in the standalone financial statements of the
Company, which constitute total assets of Rs. 342.68 lakhs and net assets of Rs, 6.03 lakhs as at March 31,
2023, total revenue of Rs. 7.95 lakhs, net excess of income over expenditure of Rs. 6.15 lakhs and net cash
flows amounting to Rs. 134.57 lakhs for the year then ended. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose report has been furnished to vus by the management, and our opinion on the
standalone financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
the Trust, is based solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books including the maintenanee of backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on servers physically located in India.
However, in the absence of adequate evidence, we were unable to verify whether the backup is maintained
on a daily basis during the period August 11, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

{¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, we draw reference
to our comment in paragraph 15(b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A"

{(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 24(i) to the standalone financial statements

The Company has long term contracts as at March 31, 2023 for which there no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 34(a) to the standalone financial statements);

(b)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 34(b) to the standalone financial statements); and

(¢)Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.




NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

LY
‘o the Members of PB Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)
leport on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
‘age 6 of 6

6. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Begistration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mw e o
ugata“Mukherjee

Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3792

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of PB
Fintech Limited (Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone finanecial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
finaneial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements.

A " b :
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that ¢ould have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

(2 /éu../

ougata Mukherjee
Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3792

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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.
1.

ii.

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the vear and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 4(a) to the
financial statements). Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

(a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

{b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited
books of account of the Company does not arise.
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iii. (a) The Company has made investments in 3 companies and 18 mutual fund schemes and granted

iv.,

unsecured loans to 12 employees during the year. The aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans are as per the table given
below:

Particul Amount
artears (Rs. in lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted during the year 13.40
- Loan to employees
Balance outstanding as a balance sheet date 8.5
- Loan to emplovees

(Also refer Note 6(c) to the financial statements)

(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments / loans to employees (which are interest free), the terms

and conditions under which such loans were granted / investments were made are not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

(c) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated, and

the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated in a regular manner.

{d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days,

{e) There were no loans which fell due during the year and were renewed / extended. Further, no

()

fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans,

The loans granted to employees during the year, had stipulated the scheduled repayment of
principal and the same were not repayable on demand. There were no loans / advances in nature
of loans which were granted during the year to promoters / related parties.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
investments made by it and there were no loans/guarantees,sccurity provided under aforesaid
section. The Company has not provided any loans/guarantees/security and made any
investments to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
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vii. (a)

(b)

ix, (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, goods and services tax and labour welfare fund, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance and labour welfare fund which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2023 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of | Amount under Amount Period to Forum
the statute dues dispute deposited which the where the
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) amount dispute is

relates pending

Income Income Tax 6,845.47 533.37 FY 2015-16 | Income Tax
tax Act, (including Appellate
1961 interest and Tribunal
penalty)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
raised funds on short term basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the
Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.
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(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x.(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.fa) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, earried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under elause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xil.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b} The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under andit have been considered by us.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(c)} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.,

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Mote 32 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.  As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi.  The reporting under clavse 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754 N/N500016

— e

Partner
Membership Number: 057084
UDIN: 23057084BGYFRN3702

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF AUDITED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

K

(¥ in Lakhs)
As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audited Audited
Assels
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 227 11,86
Right of use assels 773.66 1,079.78
Intangible assets 2402 5818
Financial asscts
- Investments 3,79,668.65 2,20,402.51
= Other financial assets 1,35,860.94 117.26
Current Tax Assects (Net) 345590 3,026.92
Other non-curremnt assels 11.45 0.07
Total non-current assets (A) 5,19,796.89 2,24,696.58
Currenf assets
Financial asscts
- Investments 10,583.67 21,224.82
= Trade receivables 8932 55596
- Cash and cash equivalents 294308 21,757.00
= Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 43,965.13 3,02,499.50
- Loans 8.15 8.21
- Other financial assets 1,59,083.35 1,19,506.33
Other current assels 234.09 2,180.25
Total current assets (B) 2,18,906.79 4,67,732.07
Total assets (A+B) 7.38,703.68 6,92 A28.65
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9.002.33 8.990.00
Oiher equity 7.27.26797 6.80,490.11
Total equity (C) 7,36,270.30 6,89,480.11
Liabilitics
MNon-current liabilitics
Financial liabilitics
- Lease liabilities 484,15 825,73
Employee defined benefit liabilities 303.33 311.26
Total non-current liabilities {I¥) TR7.48 1,136.99
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
= Lease liabilities 319.33 250.38
- Trade payables 426.27 91827
= Other Minancial liabilities 616.05 355.03
Employee defined benefit liabilities 195.62 2046.55
Other current liabilities 8863 81.32
‘Total current linbilities (E) 1,645.90 1,811.55
Total liabilities 243338 2,948.54
Tatal equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 7,38,703.68 6,92, 428.65
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MACRH 31, 2023

{2 in Lakhs)
Quarier ended Year emded
Partialars Mareh 31, 2003 Diecember 31, 2022 | March 31, 2003 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Rafer Note 9 Unamdited Refer Moge 10 Audiied Audited
1 |[Income
Revesue fiom operations 4,339.19 309898 311353 13.414.58 IO IIE G
Cuhisr income 54T941 450367 A, 61563 1947371 [
“Tadal Inceme (1) 10.208.60 T.702,65 7.729.16 32 KEE 29 21,74515
Il |Expenics
Employes bemefit expense 615513 TAITS 1. 785.58 38,197.50 4%,380.38
Dep ion and [E31E : 9279 .32 9351 373590 389.57
Adveriging and prosnotion expenses 139 G236 B34% 302,67 iTa G
Merwork and imereet expenses w13 1399 120004 46144 5607
Onher expenses 158.73 Fir ] 21186 AT A2 1148 54
Fisance cons 1132 2023 2108 ] 11484
Todal Expenacs (11} TITRES 7.956.64 12327.66 40,304.03 5176766
11 |Profie]Loss) before exceptiomal iterm and tax (1-11) LML (23359} {-I.Mﬂ (TAL5740) LH,024.51)
IV | Exceptional ilems {Frovision for invesiment impairment) - (62608
V| ProfitLoss) before tax (IT1-1V) AL (13399 (3.5TLAT) (T AIEM (30.024.51)
V1 |Ingome tax expense
Curresd lax {013 (56, 14) 2. 15) (%614
Deedemred fax - - - -
Wil |ProfieiLass) for ihe quaterfyear (V-VT) 154291 (233,56 (391638 (TAL5.61) (29.968.57y
VI | Oiher eemprebensive Inconsefloas)
N that will not b reclasidfeed 1o peodit or loss
- R af pot emplay benefin obligations (Gain) L7 4717 1217 4.7
- Imcome tax selalisg vothese incmm
Todal other comprebemsive inconse, met of income/bots) tax for the quarteriyear 172 ATT 1907 bt i
IX |Teotsl comprehensive incomeN{loss] for the quarterfycar (VIFVING 194191 2311 [3.RF1.51) .44 19.874.2
X |Paid up Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Face Value of T 25 cach) 900233 200233 E.990.00 000233 E.590.00
X1 |Ocher Equiry T27.267.97 6,30490.11
XIl |Earninge{lost) per equity share (in 7} |Face Valwe per share of T 20
(EPS is not asnsalised for the quarier emded)
1) Basic .66 (0.05) (085 {LETY {7.32)
2) Diluted 0.6% (oo (0.85) [LE T [7.32)
e pamying noles to the Saandalone audited Financial Results
S ON
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR EXDED MARCH 31, 233

in 8

Far the Year Ended
Farticulars Manch 31, 1923 BAlmrch 31, 2032
Cazh Now frem operating activities
Logs befars lax (T.405.74) {10.024.51 )8
Adjusmments foe
I P - kR ] 18957
Property, plant and equpmand writion ofl LR ood
llml'l.l'h'l.m:uulenl'pmpeﬂg l'ul.l'lll‘m {4509 (T2
Ned gain on ade on fi | s3sety mand d o fakr value ibeeagh profin ef loss (473.35) ()|
Liabilities no longer requind written back [536.36) .
Met Fair value gain o xssociate meeasured ai (air vabse theoagh predit or loss (43776} 43z
Livid albirnaance- Trade iceonvables pa leager fequined wrillen back (3241} [LAE
Loas aflowasces - ogher financial atictt = 334
aed debes TA2 =
[aterest Incasse - Umsinding of discowst - measwed 1 amornised cosl (98T} {1 1B4E]
(1T A32.29) {%,525.59
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PBE FINTECH LIMITED
(ERSTWHILE, PB FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED)
REGD. OFFICE: PLOT NOQ. 119, SECTOR 44, GURGAON, HARYANA- 122001
CIN: L51909HR2008PLCO3TI98

NOTES TO STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

The above Standalone Audited Financial Results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™)
as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules thereunder

and in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations,
2015, as amended.

These standalone audited financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 22, 2023,

Mo Stock option has been granted during the quarter ended March 31, 2023, however the company has granted
14,58,364 stock options during the year ended March 31, 2023 under the employee stock option scheme —
ESOP Scheme 2021. Share based payment expense for the quarter ended and year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs.
5,734.25 lakhs and Rs. 33,981.52 lakhs respectively.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company had completed its initial public offer ("IPO") of 58,262,397
equity shares of face value of ¥ 2 each at an issue price of 2 980 per share, comprising fresh issue of
38,265,306 equity shares and offer for sale of 19,997,091 equity shares. Pursuant to the PO, the equity shares
were listed on MNational Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited on November 15, 2021,

The Company received an amount of ¥ 361,210.80 lakhs [net off IPO expenses] from proceeds out of fresh
issue of equity shares for wtilizing various objects stated in the prospectus. Out of the aforesaid amount, ¥
77,533.10 lakhs were utilized for 'Enhancing visibility and awareness of the brands', ¥ 3,642.70 lakhs were
utilized for 'New opportunities to expand growth initiatives to increase the consumer base’, T 4,040.40 lakhs
were utilized for 'Funding strategic investments and acquisitions' and ¥ 76,210.80 lakhs were utilized for
'General corporate purposes’. The unutilized amount of ¥ 199,783.80 lakhs was invested in fixed deposits and
other bank accounts maintained with scheduled commercial banks.

The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on its business and financial results, based on the internal
and external information available, and concluded that it has no impact on the same.

The Company in its board meeting held on April 26, 2022 approved merger of Makesense Technologies
Limited with the Company pursuant to section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the

Companies (Compromises, arrangements and amalgamations) rules, 2016. The Merger application was filed
with Mational

Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited on May 18, 2022. Further, the Joint Application before the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal (Hon'ble Tribunal), Chandigarh Bench, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Act was filed on May 03, 2023,

o

8.

PR Fintech invested ¥ 3,658 Lakhs in compulsorily convertible preference shares of MyLoanCare Ventures
Private Limited (“Myloancare™) to increase its stake to 70.10%, from 24.93%, on a fully diluted basis, thereby
acquiring controlling interest in Myloancare w.e.f. June 08, 2022,

The Company has one primary business segment i.e. online marketing and information technology consulting

& support services on standalone basis. /\‘@



PB FINTECH LIMITED
(ERSTWHILE, PB FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED)
REGD. OFFICE: PLOT NO. 119, SECTOR 44, GURGAON, HARYANA- 122001
CIN: L5S1909HR2Z008PLCO37998

9. The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in

respect of the full financial year and the unaudited year to date figures up to December 31, 2022, being the date
of the third quarter of the financial year.

10. The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in

respect of the full financial year and the unaudited year to date figures up to December 31, 2021, being the date
of the third quarter of the financial year.

1. Pursuant to amendment in Schedule [11 to the Companies Act, 2013 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide
its notification dated March 24, 2021 the comparative figures as disclosed in these results have been regrouped
! reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to current year figures.

For PE Fintech Limited
(Erstwhile, PB Fintech Private Limited)

Yashish Dahiya %

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00706336

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 22, 2023
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May 22, 2023

To

National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited

Exchange Plaza, 5 Floor, Department of Corporate Services/ Listing
Plot Mo, C/1, G Block, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Dalal Street, Fort,

Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051 Mumbai — 400001

SYMBOL: POLICYBZR SCRIP CODE: 543390

Sub.: Declaration pursuant to Regulation 33(3)(d) of the Securitics & Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Dear Sir/Madam,

We, Yashish Dahiya, Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer and Mandeep Mehta, Chief
Financial Officer of the PB Fintech Limited (CIN: L51909HR2008PLC037998) having its Registered
Office at Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurgaon-122001 Haryana, hereby declare that, Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN Mo.: 012754N / N300016), Statwtory Auditors of the Company have
issued an Audit Report with unmodified opinion on Audited Financial Results of the Company (Standalone
& Consolidated) for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023,

The abovesaid declaration is given in compliance to Regulation 33(3)(d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, wvide notification No. SEBILAD-
NRO/GN/2016-17/001 dated May 25, 2016 and Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 dated May 27, 2016,

You are requested to kindly take the same on records.

Yours Sincerely,
For PB Fintech Limited

shish Dahiya)

(Mandeep Mehta)
hairman, Executive Director & CEOQ

CFO

Date: May 22, 2023
Place: Gurugram

policybazaar@  paisabazaar@)  QuickFIXcars doc¢:

PB FINTECH LIMITED

(Formerly Known As PB Fintech Private Limited /Etechaces Marketing And Consulting Private Limited)
Registered Office Address : Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram-122001 (Haryana)
Telephone No. : 0124-4562907, Fax : 0124-4562902 E-mail : enquiry@policybazaar.com
Website : wow.pbfintech.in CIN : L51909HR2008FLC037998
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iNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIM ITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting polides and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements”).

In my opinion and to the best of my infermation and according to the explanations given to me, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {(“the Act”)in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act {as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). My responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of my report.]
am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
financial statements under the provision: of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of maost significance in my audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe context of my
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Standalonc © inancial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and my auditor’s repart thereon.

My opinion on the standalone financial stztements does not cover the other information and | do not eXpress .
any form of assurance conclusion thereo . T ~a)

Address: A-39, Strc .t no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051
Emcz'l:Seth.Kishan@gmail.com
Con“act No: +91-9899453803
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In connection with my audit of the standalone financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or my knowledge obtained during the course of my audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Sta ndalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also  includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has na realistic alternative but to doso.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Compa ny's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

s+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frauwgy@;—;,\
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal cnn}u;o!.ﬂ L
(=7
=

L[ hadam
Obtain an understanding of internal financial contrels relevant to the audit in order to design a

Address: A-39, Strect no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051 ‘L'“'\».}_:.___d:f_:y
Email:Seth.Kishan@gmail.com ~Y0388

Contact No: +91-9899453803
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procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, | am also
responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 1
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
rry opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not
be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 are audited by the
predecessor auditor who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements vide their
audit report dated 24.05.2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, | give in “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on my audit | report that:

a) | have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowl
and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit. :

Address: A-39, Street no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051

Email:Seth.Kishan@gmail.com
Contact No: +91-9899453803
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b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from my examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In my opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial re porting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate Report in “Annexure
B". My report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
managerial remuneration not paid by the Company 1o its directors during the year.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in my opinion and to the best of my
information and according to the explanations given to me:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements, if any.

i  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Benezficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate_

geneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of thyﬁlﬁlﬂ%ﬁ‘-{%

Beneficiaries; &7, 2
[ P 170
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c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to my notice that has caused me to believe that the
representations under sub-cluse (a) and (b} contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For KISHAN SETH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN-038012N

o (-

{Proprietor) N F‘I> /
Membership No.535 11~
UDIN: 23535111BGVZCTE362

Date:22.05.2023
Place: Delhi

Address: A-39, Street no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051

Ema!l:Seth.Kishan@gmall.com
Contact No: +91-9899453803
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
my report to the Members of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED of even date)

To the best of my information and according to the explanations provided to me by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by me in the normal course of audit, | state that:

ii.

iil.

iv.

vI.

vii.

viii.

The Company does not have any fixed Assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i) of the order is not
applicable.

{a) The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ® 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. Hence, reporting under clause 3{ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

In my opinion and according to information and explanations given to me, during the year the
Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the order are
not applicable to the company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

{a} The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Value added Tax,
Goods and service tax, Cess and any other statutory dues. According to the information and
explanations given to me, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in
arrears, as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable, wherever applicable.

{b)According to the information and explanations given to me, the Company has no dues
outstanding which are disputed as on 31st March 2023 in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Ty

{a) The Company has not taken any leans or other borrowings from any Ienden‘,:‘—}_ljlence,

(&)
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reporting under clause 3(ix}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority or any lender.

(¢c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outsta nding term
loans at the beginning of the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3{ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short- term basis by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not
applicable.

() On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, jeint ventures, or associates companies, and hence reporting on clause 3(ix}{f)
of the Order is not applicable.

X {a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b} No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) Nowhistle blower policy has been implemented by the company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.
xiii. In my opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,

2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. In my opinion, Internal audit system is not applicable on the company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3{xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

XV, In my opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Avi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to me and as fully explained in Note 26
to the standalone Ind-AS financial statements, based on the management internal legal
counsel assessment, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A_of

the Reserve Bank of Indiz Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and thereby filed an application. 'd].:fﬂrig; g
financial year 2022-2023 intimating the Reserve Bank of India. The said applin:ati-:_:fn_; ynder L\
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process by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
{xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) In my opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.
Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

(¢) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3(xvi)ic) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

{d) The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3(xvi){d) of the order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the year and the immediately preceding financial
year, the details of which are as follows:

S.No. Financial Year Amount of Cash Loss (%
- '000) |
1 2021-2022 628
2022-2023 322

There has been a resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during the year and | had
taken into consideration that no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and my knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on my
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to my attention,
which causes me to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. I, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. |
further state that my reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and |
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall

due.

Address: A-39, Street no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051

Email:Seth.Kishan@gmail.com
Contact No: +91-9899453803



A

XX,

Date; 22.05.2023
Place: Delhi

Kishan Seth & /.ssociates

Chartered Accountants

In my opinion, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3[xx) of the Order is not applicable for theyear.

For KISHAN SETH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN-038012N Ve T

Kishan Seﬁl’/i: e

(Proprietor) N ’r:l—/
Membership No. 53‘5 ﬁf By -

UDIN: 23535111BGVZCTE362

Address: A-39, Street no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051

)
Email:Seth.Kishan@amail.com

Contact No: +91-9899453803
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
my report to the Members of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

| have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with my audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable toan audit ofinternal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My audit of
internal financial contrals over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testingand evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. A S Ag
Address: A-39, Street no. 2, East Krishna Nagar Delhi-110051

Email:Seth.Kishan@gmail.com
Contact No: +91-9899453803
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| believe that the audit evidence | have ootained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis formy
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system overfinancial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial centrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion, to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants ofindia.

For KISHAN SETH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants = H & 43~
FRN-038012N VSN

!" b
Gshan St~ \\.
Date:;22.05.2023 (Proprietor] ‘y
Place:Delhi Membership Mo.535111
UDIN: 23535111BGVZCTE362
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MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

As at As at
Particuiars Mates March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(= "000) (= '000)
Assets
Non-current assets
|Financial assets
(i} Investments 3a) 38,260,726 41,512,754
{ii} Other financial assets 3ie) 12,110 .
MWon-current tax assets (net) 4 EL 23
Total nan-current assets 38,272,871 41,512,782
Current Assets
Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 3k 106 103
(i) Otker financial assels ac) - 12,621
Other current assets B 2 15
Total current assets 108 12,745
Total assets 38,272,979 41,525,527
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 7 12,165 12,165
Other equity 8 34,253,285 37,133,666
Total equity 34,265,450 37,145,831
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 5 4,007,476 4,379,508
Total non-current liabilities 4,007,476 4,379,508
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 9
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 40 163
Other current liabilities 10 13 25
Tatal current liabilities 53 188
Total equity & liabilities 38,272,979 41,525,527

The accompanying notes 1 to 26 arz in integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Far and an behalf of Kishan Seth & Assoclates
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 038012N

Chartered Acpountants

Kishan
Propriator
Membership No.- 535111

Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2023

for and on behalf of Board of Directors

MakeSense Technologies Limited

010PLCO92002
l | a8
h an Thakkar

(Director)
DIM :00678173

Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2022

Sanjeev Bik

’:‘.ﬁéﬁﬁl@“«
|Director)

DIN:00065640



MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Motes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% '000) (= '000)
Income
Other income 11 654 643
Total Income 654 643
Expenses
Finance costs 12 o* o
Other expenses 12 576 1,271
Total Expenses 976 1,271
|Loss before tax and exceptional item (322) (628)
Exceptional ltem 0 55,461,884
Profit/(loss) before tax (322) 55,461,256
Tax expense
(1} Current tax 64 [
{2) Deferred tax 5 - 6,344,837
|Profit/iloss) for the year (388) 49,116,355
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Loss on financial assets measured at Falr value through OCI (3,252,027} (17,179,447}
income tax relating to this 372,032 1,965,329
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of income tax (2,879,935) [15,214,118)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (2,880,381) 33,902,237
Earnings per share: 14
Basic earnings per share - after exceptional item (0.32) 40,375.14
Basic earnings per share - before exceptional item [0.32) (0.57)
Diluted earnings per share -after exceptional item [0.32) 40,375.14
Diluted earnings per share - before exceptional item {0.32) (0.57)

*Below rounding off norms of the company

The accompanying nates 1 to 26 are in integral part of the Financial Statements.

s per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Kishan Seth & Associates
ICAI Firm Registration Mumber: 038012N
Chartered Accountants

Kikha
Proprietor
Membership No.- 535111

Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2023

Yozn - 235351 BhyzeT423L 2.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

MakeSense Technologies Limited
cw:u? £092002 .

%- kkar

(Laadows

Sanjeev Bikhchandani

{Directa (Director)
DIM 00678173 DIN:00065540
Place: Noida

Date: May 22, 2023



MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
CASH FLOWY STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

Yiear ended Year anded
S.Mo. |Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
% 000) i® 'o0d)
M. |Cash flow from operating activities:

et hoss before exceptional items and tax [322) [628)
Adjustments for:

Interest received on Fleed Deposits (554) (Ba3)
Oiperating loss before working capital changes (978) 11271}
Adjustments for changes in working capital ;

(Dreereade) Increade in Trade payables (1209 11

Decrease/ [Increase] in other current asset 11 (15}

|Decreate) Increate In Other current Kabilities [13) [
Cash used in operating activities [1.09%) (1288}

Incame Taxes Paid {net) [72) 57}
Net cash flows used in operating activities [1.1 [1,3658]

B. |Cash flow from Investing activithes:

Maturity of fixed deposits nr 57

irterest receieed on fied depasits 4E 1,334
Wat cash Mows from investing activities 1,165 1,351

€. [Cash Now from fNnanding activithes:
Proceeds form fresh issue of Share Capital (including Share Premium |
et cash flows from financing activities -
et (decrease]f increase in cash & cash eguivalents 3 5
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 09 &4
Closing balsnce of cash and eash sguivalents 106 104
Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cazh on hand 4 a
Balance with banks

In current accounts 102 105

In fised deposits acopwnts with original matarity of less than 3 menths - —
Tatal cash and cash equivalents 106 109

Balances in foed deposit accounts with origingl matuity more thas 3 months but less than 12 months . -

Balanoe in fised deposit accounts with original maturity moee than 12 manths [refer mote 3(cl] 11,811 Eﬂl::

11,917

Tatal

1 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in IND AS - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 {the Act) [Companies {Indkan Accounting Standasds) Rubes, 2015, as amended.
2 Flgeres In brackets indicate cash autflow.

1he accomparying notes 1 to 16 are in ntegral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our repent of even date attached
Far and an bekalfl of Kishan Seth & Assoclates

BCAI Firm Registration Number: 032012M
Chartered Accountants

e

Proprietor
Membership Mo~ 535111

Place: Holda
Date: May 22, 2023

UDIN' - 2353511 Bavz(T{x2.

For and on hehadf of Board of Directons

MakeSense Technal
(= H

Place: Maida
Date: May 22, 2023




MAKESENSE TECHMNOLOGIES LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

a. Equity share capital
Particulars Note Armaunt (T "000)
As at April 01, 2021 1! 165
Changes in equity share capital during the year 7 =
As ot March 31, 2022 1¥,165
Changes In equity share capital during the year 7 =
Az at March 31, 2023 132,165 |
b. Other Equity
[ "000)
Farticulars Reserve & Surplus Equity instruments
through other Total
Share premium account Retained Earnings | comprehensive income
Balance as at April 01, 2021 3,241,648 [10,215) - 3,231,428
|Prodit for the vear - 49,116,355 - 49,116,355 |
Other Comprehansive loss for the year . . {15,214,118) [15,:12::.!“
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,241,648 45,106,136 15, 2“:115[ 37,1
[® "000}
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Equity instruments
through ather Totel
Share premium account Retained Earnings compeehantive income
Balance as at April 01, 2022 3,241 648 49,106,136 (15,214,118} | 37,133, 666
Lous for the year - [38E) - [38E)
Other Comgrehenshoe loss far the year - - {2.879,905) 2,879,995
|Balance as at Mareh 31, 2023 3,241,648 49,105,750 (18,094,113} 34,15;:235 i

The accompanying notes 1 to 26 ane in integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Kishan Seth & Associates
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 03801208
ridd niants

o

han
Pmpriemo-""’-’-’“
Membership No.- 535111

Flace: Nolda
Diate: May 22, 2023

UDIn’- 23535101 BlovZeT 6.

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DN :005TELTS

Place: Moida
Diate: May 22, 2023

Sanjeev Bikhchandani
[Director)
DIN:00065640



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1, Reporting Entity

Makesense Technologies Limited (the company) is a limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Plot No. 123,
Sector 44, Gurugram, Gurgaon, Haryana 122001,

The financial staternents are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 22, 2023,
2. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use,

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of services
and the time between the rendering of service and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and noncurrent classification of assets
and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off in thousands (as per the requirement of Schedule IIT), unless ctherwise stated.

(ii} Historical Cost Convention
The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
s Certzin financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value / amortised cost less diminution, if any
B. Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions or make

reversals of provisions made in earlier years, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
/ received from the tax authorities,



Deferred tax is recognized for all the temporary differences, between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax
assets, Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only if it is probable that sufficient future taxable
amounts will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where the company Is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temperary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foresesable future,

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and lax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which such temporary
differences can be utilised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxable authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive otligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the ubligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating lossas.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the Lkelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash in hand, amount at banks and other short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, -



E. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
+ the profit attributable to the shareholders of the company
< Profit after exceptional items and tax
4 Profit before exceptional items and after tax
« by the weightea average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elements in equity shares issued during the year

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into

account:
+ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholder and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares

F. Financial Instruments
(i} Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss),

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For financial assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded either through profit or loss or through
other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
control entities these are carried at cost less diminution, if any. However, the gains or losses with respect to
other investments that are not held for trading are recognised through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments, on instrument to instrument
basis, as equity instrumants designated at fair value through OCI that are not held for trading. For other investments
which are required to be carried at fair value are routed through Profit & loss account.



Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies
its debt instrurments:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCL) : Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flow represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit & loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or far value
through OCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other income in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than investments
in equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, which are carried at cost less diminution,
if any. The financial investment which are not held for trade is subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments, on
instrument to instrument basis, as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI that are not held for trading.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.

iy Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amertized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables only, Lhe Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A finanicial asset Is derecognised only when
« the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

« refains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.



Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involverment in the financial asset.

(v} Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to short term maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is darecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(vi) Income recognition
Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

G. Exceptional items
Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of such

significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial stslements to understand the impact
in a more meaningful manner.

Following are considered as exceptional items -

a) Gain or loss on disposal of investments to wholly owned subsidiaries at higher or lower than the cost/
beok value

b) Write down of investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates which are carried at
cost in accordance with IND AS 27 to recoverable amount, as well as reversals of write down.

c) Impact of any retrospective amendment requiring any additional charge to profit or loss.

d} Gain on fair valuation of Investment reclassified as per Ind AS 109

H. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies. The



estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management's evaluation

of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements, Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of non-
current investments and has been discussed below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of current tax

expense and payable, employee benefits and fair value of unlisted subsidiary entities have been discussed in their
respective policies.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
a) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

b} Estimation of Deferred tax asset/liability
c) Impairment of Investments in subsidiary/1Vs and associates

I. Estimation of Impairment on Non-Current Investment

The Company carries reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently

when there is an indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
lass is accounted for,

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expactation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.,



A FrchRCAL RIATTE

Ta} Mo Cumvns brekitiaans- Sharey
Anat Baut
Paribsudars Adarch 81, P23 March 1L, 3022
Kesmibar of Shure Fate Vbt pef thare P o 00l Hurnkere of Share| Fae Waker puie ihare. (R [R5
] =)
Lmmrstrrardy b Dpeity dhses (Rally paid up] [Fair Valos fhroasgh 000
Chamdd
8 Fivtoth Lirnined] ¥ i Fivtech &) (Make retn 1 il 12§ SRR FE- -] b BT830 T T, I0a
Sl vt bl e e e ] 183 - PRI b2 s
il | Conmer S LA Tee 13086 LGS 000 200 asmns
A | Galn g Pude walation rowiwd Buough profi of ks 5451884 AL B
i Bhrouaph oified Comgrthesiien IS0RTH LELSRER B 38,260, TH ATLAT| A5
150,718 AL AL
T ALBNLTM
— Hen-Curtent Curment
T T T T
Partiulan March 11, 1023 Maros Bl B2DT Mssch 1, BI28 | Melarch AL, 3F2
(LA ] k... | LA [k -
Caihi B caah sguialani
Canh o bl = . 4 ¥
Maareiy wilk Bash o dnrSpR) SO0ST - . ] 1
- = i [
6] Emhar Firansial Austn
WHen Currerd [
£l Apat Aust Asal
Purtiodsm March K1, 2923 falgeck B, B8 | MderchiSL 2323 | Meech 31, JORP
|nnsacereat. ponuidered good unies ofbereit Asted [xwes) Py 1 (ewen) 1 juvesd
s N drp il accounts with orgieal Faleiy o S this L monsns LA . 12,008
il b 0 baed drpaun = . s
(EXIT : 5T
& Fom-Cureend Tan Aot
Won Carmant Carrart
Ay Auwi Ai a1 Anat
Purtivdary Slacm O, P21 | MerchL, 2033 | Admeck BL BSIF | Wasech Rl HOE
|pnsscuresd povsidered yood unfem sthereiie aled) [x voo] gy 1 rewen) 1 puvesd
Rebyarsin Van fr g F T s abla) Lisl Lo . . |
L e bl tan (.56 [LDE o .
] T . B
-
5 Cafevrd Fag
[T Anat
Surtiraary Sarch AL, 2533 | MAwech 32, 3EE
ool | mvon |
Dafarvad e s Tkt ey
- Dperiag balenes [E8 Bkl T -
- Atjunimant for e puar:
- ereitndfichinged] Throangh proft o ket s
+ ermod N bob gl Th b OTAST COaRpRERES vt IncTaTa LERELH
ol earad i e showm b B
e Anst
ek i 23R o ot o boan Idarch B, 3822
] [x o) g 1wy
Dartarrad bax Babiitin.
-outed teough profl of ks
i vabantion of et 6, 344,83 - JEENT
Bousted theough othr oomprhetsten Beinrd
s vabaaisn of Frerbeen FE LT LEr M Lyh Y
[ret ST ATH| mg]  anse|
A Gahed Corriel Kuidty
Aat T Asat Baat
Fartioelaet efarch: 31, 3533 Fach 33, 3T Meharch AL, 3OFE Ferch 11, 1022
corsidered lueeel | oo [ o] foceh
Aredasn] P o rad i i cath and g s . z
- - F]




7, Shars Capital

As at Az at
Particulss larch 31, 3623 iviarch 31, 3022
[ ‘o) fr'000)
AUTHORISID CAPITAL
15,500,000 bquity Shares of T 10/ each
htarch 2027 - 25,500,000 Equity Shares of %t 10/~ each] 155,000 155,000
'}, 000G, 000 0.5001% Cumslative Comertiable Preference Shanes of % 100/~ each
2032 00 Preferemoe Shares of T 100/ sach] 300,000 300,000 |
SSUED, SINSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
1, 716,500 Equity Shares of % 10/~ each, fully paid up 12,165 12165
|MAarch 2022 - 1,216,500 Equity Shanes ol % 10/ each)
12,185 13,165
. Reconcilistion of the shares sutstanding ot the beginning sod at the snd of the Feporiing yesr
An ak Bsat Aast Asat
Particulsrs March 3, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
M of $hares 1= "noa) Wo of Shared ]
Equity Shares
A1 tha Beginning of th year 1216500 12,16% 1.216500 1L165
Add: Bsued daring the vear - - - -
Oututanding a1 le end of the yesr T 165 1,716 500 12,165
b. Teemi/Rights attached 1o equity thares
mwmmwmmﬂmmm;wwmﬂtmum Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to ong vote per share.
. Datalls of sharebolders srvore this § U5 shares in the Company
Asat A
Particulars. March 11, 2023 March 31, a2
o of Shares| * M. of Sharas | =
Equity Shares of % 10 wach fully pakd
mwimy;um&ﬂumhmﬂdwl 608,305 50.00% w08, 305 S0.00%
BacRitchie Ivvements P, Ld. 8. 188 4955 608,185 A G
1316894 99.09%| 1,715,434 .00
d. Shared heid by promoter & promoter prowg at the end of the year
Faat Haat
wamd of promstor March 31, 2023 I March 31, 2032 1 ’t"m
Y ,,_,..’ kg | Wi of thares e Halding il
Cquity shares of £10 e fully paid
tnfo Edpe {ndia) Limked BOEI0% 5000 608,505 5000 -
S— S— B
L e -~ L] =5
Az at Aaat N "
Name of promater March 11, 3122 sarch 31, T2l | = the year
M, of ghared) % Holding| Wa, of %
rmm o T10 each Tully paid
-info Fdge (India) Umited B8 305 50,00 G0B305 S0.00 .
Tetal 08,305 50,00 504, 305.00 £5.00 |
B, Dthar
At A5 ak
Particulan Warch 71, 2023 March 31, 3032
%000 % o)
‘Securities Pramium Acogunt
| pening Balance 3,241,548 3,241,648
Add : AddiRtion durieg the year - .
3,241,648 3,241,048
Retained pamingi
Cipening Balance £9,106,135 140,215)
| Add: Profit) fleds] for the yeas {385 45,116,755
49,105,750 49,106,134
|:mmﬂwdmwmmw#hwm -
Opening Ralance (15,214,118} -
Addd - Dtbser compeehemive ivoome/{ias] for the year, net of Incoss tax [2,870.595) [15,214,2108)
{18.054,113) {15,314 118}
] 17,133,666

Nabere and puiposs of revarves
a) Securithes premium

mrnﬂnmhmwrmilemﬂmﬂmm1hmuanMmhfﬂml‘

prowisions of the Companies A, 2003,

b} Epeity Instrumants through other comgeehenshve Incoms

Tha Company has elected 1o recognise changes in the fair wahse ol certain irenments in equity

securities in other comprebanibe

instruments through Other Comprehesisee Income within eyulty. The Comg

as {rom thit reserve i

m«um»mﬂmwmmmummm

income. Theds changes are scoumulabed within the Equity
whish the rebevart equity seces fties are derecogniied.




9. Trade Puysbles
Non-Cusrent Current
. Asat Asal Aaat Azt
March 31, 123 March 31, 2012 Mlarch 31, 2023 March 11, 2022
[ 'noa) (% 000} {4 %e00) [tlood)
Trade Payables
1stal etstanding dues of micro enterprives and semall entesprives
mmdmﬂMMuh«“mm"wuBmdwl
enLerpraes &0 1563
&0 163

Trardbe payable Ageing Schadula
Year ended March 31 2023 Amount [1008]
Paticulars Less than 1 year 12 ywars 3-8 year Muwe than 3 years | Total

40 40

d - - -
5 wd -Cthers .
At
Less than 1 year 12 years 1-5 yaars More than 3 years | Tosal
163 - 161
Moe-Curment Current
Ax 8t Asat Asut Azt
March X1, 203 Maarch 11, 2022 Mmrch 31, DR March 31, 1022
% "eoa) [nemg) [% oo _[x'003)
TS paryable 13 a5
13 75 |

frh‘u.spmh-uhiﬂmlpﬂpllhlhnlq



11. Other Income

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% '000) (% "000)
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks 654 643
[ 643
12, Finance Costs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% "000) (% "000)
Bank charges o* o
[N [N
*Below rounding off norms of the company
13, Other Expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% "000) {% "000])
Legal and Professional Expenses® S46 1,260
Intt On Short/Late Dep Of TDS 12 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 18 1
kL] f
*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration [exchesive of Goods and service tax)
As auditor:
Year ended Year enced
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[ *000) (% '000)
Audit Fees (Excluding G5T) 150 150
150 150
14. Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share [EPS)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022
% '000) [% '000)
Profitfiloss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Profit after exceptional items and tax) [286) 49,116,355
[386) (692)
Prafit/{loss) attributable to Equity Sharehelders (Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and after tax)
Weighted average numbser of Equity Shares sutstanding during the year (Nos.) 1,216,500 1,216,500
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each (%)-after exceptional item [0.32) 40,375.14
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each (%)-before exceptional item {0.32) 0.57)




1%, Related Party Dhclossre
5L} . Ralsted Paity Diccloturss fos B year sndsd March 10, }21
[ainnly Comnrolbed Entity of

Info Edge (refia] Limited
MacFitchie Evemtments Poa. Lid

Mishar Naseah Bhardan dhrestar P L)

B) Cortaiti of trasdaitions with reliied party for thee year ended Masch 11, 3001 bn the ooinary coure of beises
Irde Edge (bdia) ind. | Mlacfinches Invesimaest Totsl

Ratorw of relafombep [ baassctien
Pl lad

5]
15 [7] . Aelated Party Diiclodwed bor tha yoad anded Maich EL, 723

Folatly Coateplled Entity of
Info Cdge [hredis) Limited
Mackitches Wretitments Foe. Lid

Ky Managemeni Pirierasd (TMF) B Relatsom
W e Bibcharc

It Ol Thakhar

WAt Mohis Bandari b diredior

Asisdaten
Fil Fircerh Limbied [1ill Kosprmbar L4, 20011
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Watare ol relativaskip | Mansaclion
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= = -] 0 |

L Anieburrpmant of prporses

Aeanclard) 1IN0 854 Bule, D15 o tha Comparry i niq hiw ary Dperston doring the Sesncal year.

LB Mo dricbouse i reguned wrder INDAS 108 on Segimeng Rap g perrfied in {inian

AT Dmplopes Bereline

Thay of IND A% 15 on Ermph Banafiiy illed in Jindias & g Sandards (M0 A5} Bules 2005, 80 by noi dated & 51, 3004, erw mol spplicelis on The comBarTy En0e Thare war
m0 amplkapes armployad by th company during the yee & previos e,

R, Burterl o Thop idoemaiegn wvadable with e Camaarny, the Company hay ro desn (o ropkers iepatened wider e "The M, Small sad Wedium Deterprines. Developmant A, J008" [ WEMED A:t). The dnclowst pufiiant 13

ha gl REROID At wrw an olicwn

Amourd (10000
Particalar Tear ended Wear ended
Morth i, 028 | Weech 31, 2007 |

14, The Baard of Directors of the Company, had Slsd an with Rasional C Wirw Tribussal, Chandigach Banh ["NCLT) Tor schema of smalgsmation: beisern PH Findech Prvate Linited{laimaly kv &6 6Tecbion
Maskating snd Commulting Private Limited snd later knows as FB Fisteth Peivite Lisined) (Tearfenee Comparny], snd the company (Tramferor Company) poil i oo Whetid' d e #h and creditory vide thais
repective meetisg hald o derl b6, 2001,

0., During the previces your ended Miech 3191 2030 P8 Fistech Limted [lormerly kg ase Tashil ¥ ard Conuuting Private Uimited ssd labe kncwn ad B Fiseds Frivans Livsoed), hag come oot with initial pblic offer

W] ol i ity shares a5 dusth dbaees hurce beors Buved oo MSE B B3 on Moswmiban 13, 1031

u.;u—hu.u..p-umu....|ue._u»uumﬁm;..mn.-m.um"m.umm-wmmﬂhumﬂummmummd
ASALR, Aeersdhagh d ok ..u"rmm:wumqluudumwummummmﬂmﬂmhwmmﬂﬂmhmwﬂm
date ol Batinag vll yesr snded March 13,3022 [0 17,170,457 thoussach) snd unceslised ki for yaar eaddid March 31, 1023 (% 1LI5L097 thownands] ban been tales to Other Comprehmabes Incams in L (e ST




21. Income Tax Expense

This note grovides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity
and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

a) Income Tax expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% '000) [= '000)
Current tax on profit for the year 64 64
Total current tax expenses 64 64
Deferred Tax - 6,344,837
Total 64 6,344,901
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(z'000) (% '000)
Loss before exeptional item and tax (322) (628)
Tax (@ 25.168% (Previous year 25.168%) (81) {158)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable] in calculating
taxable income:
Others 145 222
Deferred tax on fair valuation gain on Investment - 6,344,837
Total G4 6,344,901




22. Financial Instruments And Risk Management

Fair valuwe Wisrarchy

a] Financhal instruments by category
[Amngunt ¥ 000}
Marech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Falr vales through |Falr value through Amartised cost | Fair value through |Falr value through other | Amartised cost
profit or boss ather comprehensive profit or loss e preheniboe income
Incoma
Financial Assets
| investments = 38 260,726 - . 41,512,754 .
mmmﬁma - = 06 = - 109
‘Oaher financial assets - - 12,110 = - 12621
Total Financial Assets = 38,260,725 16 - 41, 154 12,730
Finandal Liab!/Btees
Trade payables = - 40 . . 163
Total Rnancial Lisbilities = = 40 = - 153
The foliswing explaans th judgements and estimates made i d inieyg the Tair vatues of the Bnancial ey that are isod and measured at fa'r value threugh profit of loas. To provide

an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair value, the Company has classified its financial irvestments inte the thewe levels prescribed umder the accounting standand, An
wxplanation cf kach leve) fellcws undevseath the tabily

b Fair valus hinrarchy for assets and Nabilitles

Financial assets measured at falr valus st March 31, 2003
Lovel 1 Lewel 2 Lol 3

FHnancal Asvets
- Investrnent in shares: Ti6 - -

Financial assets measured ot fair value st March 11, 2002

Financlal Adsets Revel 1 Lervel 2 Lewed 3 !
- Investment in Duity shares 41,512,754 . -
il

Lewel 1 hierarchy inchades financial instruments measared using quoted prices [unadjusted] in active market for identical assets that the snlity can access at the meaturemenl date. This represents
miutual funids that have price quated by the respective mutual fund houses and are valued usisg the dosing Het piset value (MAV]

Level 2 hierarchy includes the faér value of financial invframents that are not traded in an sctive market (Le. unguoted mutual funds) s determined using veluatior sbtained From the respective mutusl
fund houtes.

Level X i eme or more of the significant inputs is mot based on observable market data, the instrurnent is inchuded bn bevel 3. This is the case for compound indtruments.

Ther are no transfers between aow of these levels during the vear, The Comaany’s colicy is 19 recoanise transfers inta and transfers out of feir value hiersrchy levels as at the end of the reparting

£} Yaluation techaigues used 1o determineg falr value

Specific valuation techaiques used to value Tinantial instruments include:

= the use of quoted markit prices of mutual fund kouses quetes [NAY) for such insthaments. This is included in Level 1.

= the faif value of the remalning finaaclal instr 13 it datermined uting discounted cash ficw anabysia for which third party valeer is apposnted, This is inchided bn Level 3.

o Financlal asyets and llabilities measured at amortised cost

The casrying amcunts of cash and cash equivalents, olber financia! sssets and trade payables are considened 1o be (ha sare a3 Wi fair vabns, due to their shor-teim nature,
Fiar fimancial 355815 and Rabilities that aee iseacured 81 fair valus, the canrying amounts sre equal 1o the fair valses,

(e} Valuation professes
This Company uses third paty valuert 1o perform the valuations of the ungquoted equily shares, preference shares ard debentunes required far inancial reperting purpeses for Lewe) 3 puipeses other
Nhian i ] in isorify reds ble preference skares and deb (Delst ts} which are done by Firance department of the company.

Thae main Level 3inputs for these unlisted securities sre derived and evaluated &s below.
= Digcount rates sre determined using a capital assyet pricing moded to caloulate o pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments af the time va'ue of meney and the rak specific to the asset,

« Earndngs growil factor far unlisted equity securities are estimated based on market information for similar types of compankes to the xtent availatie.

Significant estinates
The fair value af financial fnstruments that are rot raded in an active markot is dy ined using valuation teckini Thee ¢ i uses its judgement Lo select 3 variely of methods and make
assumntiond that ane mainly based an market conditions exising at the end of easch reporting period, For detalls of the key azsusnpticns used a0 the Impact of changes i these assmptions ses (<)

and (2] aborve. -




23, Financial Risk And Capital Management

A) Financial risk management framework

The Company’s management has overall responsibiCiy for the establishment and eversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and Lo maonitor risk:
and adherence to limits. Risk management pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes In market conditions and the Company’s activities.

This nate explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk |Exposure arising from | Measurement Management of risk
Credit risk Cach and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial | Aging analysis Diversification of bank
assets measured at amortised cost. Credit ratings deposits, credit limits and
regular monitoring,
Ligquidity risk Borrawings and other liahilitizs Rolling cash flow Availability of surplus cash,
' forecasts committed
credit lines and borrowing
facilities
Credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other depesits with banks Is limited as the company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned &
external credit rating agencies, accordingly the Company considers that the retated credit risk is low. Impairment on these items are measured on the 12-month expected crid
loss basis,

Interast rate risk

Intarest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow iaterest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the rish of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearic
investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow {nterast rate risk s the risk that the future cash flows of Tloating interest bearing Investments will fluctua
because of fluctuations in the isterest rales.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to interest risk aris2s only on the investment in fived deposit due to fluctuations in interest rate The Interest rate profile of the Company’s intere:
bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is a3 follows.

Amount ¢ '000
Parch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assots 11,811 12,02
Financial liabilities - .
Total 11,811 .'IZE
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policybazaar@  paisabazaar@ QuickFIXcars

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF MRECTORS OF PB FINTECH LIMITED AT ITS
MEETING HELD ON 26 APRIL 2022 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME OF
AMALGAMATION OF MAKESENSE TECHN 1 ] WITH PB FINTECH
LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON PROMOTER
SHAREHOLDERS

1. Background

1.1.  The Board of Directors of PB Fintech Limited (“Board™) at its meeting held on 26 April 2022 have
approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited (“Transferor
Company™) with PB Fintech Limited (“Transferee Company™) and their respective shareholders

under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)
(“Scheme™).

1.2, Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act requires the Board to adopt a report explaining the effect of
the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (“KMPs™), promoters and
non-promoter shareholders of the Transferee Company laying out in particular the share exchange
ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the same is required to be circulated as part
of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme.

1.3.  This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act.

1.4, The following documents were, infer alia, placed before the Board:

1.4.1.  Draft Scheme duly initialled by the Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of
identification;

1.42. Copy of the fair equity share exchange ratio report dated 26 April 2022 issued by M/s.
S5PA & Co. Chartered Accountants, Registered Valuer (“Share Exchange Ratio

Report™), duly initialled by the Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of
identification; and

1.4.3.  Copy of the faimess opinion dated 26 April 2022 (“Fairness Opinion™) issued by M/s. SPA
Capital Adwvisors Limited, a Category-1 Merchant Banker on the faimess of the

consideration determined under the Share Exchange Ratio Report in connection with the
proposed Scheme,

2.  Share entitlement report and issue of consideration pursuant to the Scheme

2.1.  In terms of the Scheme, it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot its equity shares on a

proportionate basis to the shareholders of the Transferor Company as on Effective Date, in the
following manner:

“5,08,90,000 eguity shares of INR 2 each fully paid wp af the Transferee Company in the proportion
of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders in the Transferor Company ™
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Motwithstanding the above, it is clarified that the Transferee Company will issue and allot same
number of equity shares to shareholders of the Transferor Company, as will be held by the Transferor
Company in the Transferee Company, as on the Effective Date.

2.2, The Registered Valuer has certified that the abovementioned consideration for the proposed Scheme,
is fair,

2.3, Mo special valuation difficulties were reported.

3. [Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of the
Transferee Company

3.1. The Transferee Company is a professionally managed company and does not have an identifiable

promoter in terms of SEBI (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and the
Companies Act, 2013,

3.2, The Share Exchange Ratio Report determines the consideration such that, pursuant to the Scheme, the
Transferee Company will allot same number of equity shares to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company as the Transferor Company holds in the Transferee Company.

3.3. Hence, there is no adverse impact of the Scheme on the shareholding and the economic interest of the
shareholders of the Transferee Company.

4. Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Transferee Company

Pursuant to the Scheme, there shall be no impact on the existing KMPs/ employees of the Transferee
Company.

In view of the above, the Scheme would be in the best interest of all stakeholders of the Transferee
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

P~

Name: Alok Bansal
Designation: Whole Time Director
DIN: 01653526

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 26, 2022
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
1st Floor, * Arjun®, Plot No. 6 A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbal - 400 058. INDIA.
Ted, : 91 (22) 2670 4376
01 (12) 2670 3682
Fax ; 91 (22) 2670 3916
Website : www.sspain

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

April 26, 2022

The Audit Committee The Board of Directors,

PB Fintech Limited Makesense Technologies Limited
Plot No. 119, Sector 44, Plot No., 123, Sector 44,
Gurugram =122 001, Gurugram =122 001,

Haryana Haryana.

Sub: Recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of
Makesense Technologies Limited with PB Fintech Limited

Dear Sir(s) / Madam(s),

We refer to the engagement letter dated December 03, 2021, whereby we have been requested by
the management of Makesense Technologies Limited and PB Fintech Limited (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the '‘Management’) to issue a report containing recommendation of fair
equity share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited
(hereinafter referred to as ‘MTL’ or the Transferor Company’) with PB Fintech Limited (hereinafter
referred to as ‘PBFL’ or the ‘Transferee Company’) (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Proposed

Amalgamation’). MTL and PBFL are hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘Companies’.

1. SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 We have been given to understand that in order to inter alia streamlining of the corporate
structure, it Is proposed that MTL will amalgamate with PBFL in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
{(hereinafter referred to as ‘Scheme of Amalgamation’),
Subject to necessary approvals, MTL would be amalgamated with PBFL, with effect from the
appointed date of April 01, 2022. As a consideration for the Proposed Amalgamation,
shareholders of MTL would be issued equity shares of PBFL.

1.2 Inthis regard, we have been requested to issue a report containing recommendation of fair

equity share exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation.
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

BACKGROUND

PB FINTECH LIMITED

PBFL was incorporated on June 04, 2008 as Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private
Limited. The name was subsequently changed to PB Fintech Private Limited on September
18, 2020 and subsequently converted to a public limited company on June 30, 2021.
PBFL owns the brands ‘Policybazaar’ and ‘Paisabazaar’. The Policybazaar and Paisabazaar
platform offerings address the large and highly underpenetrated online insurance and
lending markets. These brands provide convenient access to insurance, credit and other
financial products and aims to create awareness amongst Indian households about the
financial impact of death, disease and damage. Through a consumer-centric approach, these
brands seeks to enable online research-based purchases of insurance and lending products
and increase transparency, which enables consumers to make informed choices.

The equity shares of PBFL are listed on BSE limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

MTL was incorporated on September 21, 2010. MTL holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares
(~13.32%) in PBFL of face value INR 2 each as on date. MTL is a joint venture between
info Edge (India) Limited and MacRitchie Investments Pte. Ltd. MTL was incorporated to
carry on business of providing services and solutions in relation to placement consultancy,
personnel recruitment, staffing, professional hiring and management consultancy to all kinds
of persons, firms or organisations.

The shareholding pattern of MTL (Face value INR 10 each) as on December 31, 2021 is as

under:
No. of % of
MName of the Shareholder ' holdi
Info Edge (India) Ltd (including 6 shares held by Nominees) | 6,08,311| 50.01%
MacRitchie Investments Pte, Ltd. 6,08,189 49.99%

REGISTERED VALUER — SSPA & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
SSPA, is a partnership firm, located at 1st Floor, “Arjun”, Plot No. 6A, V. P. Road, Andheri
(West), Mumbai - 400 058, India. SSPA is engaged in providing various corporate consultancy

services.
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountanis

We are a firm of practicing Chartered Accountants registered with The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). We are also registered with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Board of India ('IBBI'), as a Registered Valuer for asset class — ‘Securities or Financial Assets’
with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

For the purpose of this exercise, we have relied upon the following information which has

been received from the Management and information available in the public domain:

{a) Audited financial statements of MTL for the 9 months period ended
December 31, 2021.

(b) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation.

{c) Suchotherinformation and explanations as we required and which have been provided

by the Management, including Management Representations.

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DIPBFLAIMERS
Our report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report is
to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred
to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made. Further, our report
containing recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio for the Proposed
Amalgamation is in accordance with ICAI VS 2018 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

This report has been prepared for the Board of Directors of PBFL and MTL solely for the
purpose of recommending a fair equity share exchange ratio for the Proposed Amalgamation
of MTL with PBFL.

The report assumes that the Companies complies fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and that the
Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible manner, Further, as specifically
stated to the contrary, this report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature,
including Issues of legal title and compliance with any laws and litigations.

The draft of the present report was circulated to the Management (excluding the
recommendation of fair equity share exchange ratio) for confirming the facts stated in the

report and to confirm that the information or facts stated are not erroneous.



3.5,

5.6.

5.7.

5.8

5.9.

SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
For the purpose of this exercise, we were provided with both written and verbal information

including information detailed hereinabove in para ‘Sources of Information’. Further, the
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to us by the
Companies and/or its auditors / consultants, is that of the Companies. Also, with respect to
explanations and information sought from the Companies, we have been given to
understand by the Management that they have not omitted any relevant and material
information about the Companies. The Management have indicated to us that they have
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our
analysis/conclusions.

Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence or certification of these information
referred to in this report. Accordingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on
the faimess or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report and
consequential impact on the present exercise. However, we have evaluated the information
provided to us by the Companies through broad inquiry, analysis and review. However,
nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the information provided / obtained was
materially misstated / incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base
the report.

This report is issued on the understanding that the Management has drawn our attention to
all the matters, which they are aware of concerning the financial position of the Companies
and any other matter, which may have an impact on the report including any significant
changes that have taken place or are likely to take place in the financial position of the
Companies. Events and transactions occurring after the date of this report may affect the
report and assumptions used in preparing it and we do not assume any obligation to update,
revise or reaffirm this report.

We are independent of the Companies and have no current or expected interest in the
Companies or its assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results of our
analysis.

Our report is not, nor should it be construed as we are opining or certifying the compliance
with the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation and capital market
related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or abroad from the

Proposed Amalgamation.
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Any person/party intending to provide finance/divest/invest in the shares/convertible
instruments/business of the Companies shall do so after seeking their own professional
advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are
making an informed decision.

The decision to carry out the Proposed Amalgamation (including consideration thereof) lies
entirely with the parties concerned and our work and our finding shall not constitute a
recommendation as to whether or not the parties should carry out the Proposed
Amalgamation.

Our report is meant for the purpose mentioned in Para 1 only and should not be used for
any purpose other than the purpose mentioned therein. It is exclusively for the use of the
Companies and may be submitted to National Company Law Tribunal/regulatory/statutory
authority for obtaining requisite approvals. The report should not be copied or reproduced
without obtaining our prior written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for
which it is prepared. In no event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall
SSPA assume any responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or
otherwise made available.

S5PA nor its partners, managers, employees make any representation or warranty, express
or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the information, based on
which this report is being issued. We owe responsibility to the Companies that has appointed
us under the terms of the engagement letter. We will not be liable for any losses, claims,
damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions or advice given by any other
person. In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any
way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or witful default on part of the client or

companies, their directors, employees or agents.

BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF FAIR SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

MTL as on the date of this report holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each
fully paid-up of PBFL. Upon the effective date, pursuant to amalgamation of MTL with PBFL,
the entire shareholding of MTL in PBFL will be cancelled and the shareholders of MTL would
be issued same number of fully paid-up equity shares of PBFL, which they own indirectly
through their holding in MTL as on the effective date. Pursuant to the amalgamation, there

would be no change in the paid-up share capital of PBFL. As mentioned above, post-
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SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
amalgamation the shareholders of MTL will hold the same number of shares as MTL holds in

PBFL. Consequently, there is no impact on the shareholding pattern of other shareholders of
PBFL and therefore no valuation of PBFL and MTL is required.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, there is no additional consideration being discharged
under the Scheme except same number of shares of PBFL being issued to the shareholders
of MTL in lieu of shares held by MTL in PBFL respectively (which will get cancelled). Thus, for
every fresh issue of share of PBFL to the shareholders of MTL, there is a corresponding
cancellation of an existing PBFL share as held by MTL. Also, there would be no change In the
aggregate shareholding of other shareholders in PBFL and it shall not affect the interest of
other shareholders of PBFL.

Accordingly, valuation approaches as indicated in the format as prescribed by circular
number NSE/CML/2017/12 of NSE and LIST/COMP/02/2017-18 of BSE have not been
undertaken as they are not relevant in the instant case.

The management of MTL have given an undertaking that the cash / fixed deposits in the
books of MTL immediately prior to effective date will be utilised to meet the costs, fees,
charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses in relation to the Proposed

Amalgamation.

CONCLUSION - RECOMMENDATION OF FAIR EQUITY SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

Based on the above in the event of amalgamation of MTL with PBFL, we recommend a fair

equity share exchange ratio as follows:

"5,08,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid up of the Transferee Company In the
proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders in the Transferor

Company.

Notwithstanding the above, it is clarified that the Transferee Company will issue and allot
same number of equity shares to shareholders of the Transferor Company. as will be held by
the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company, as on the effective date.”

In case any shareholder’s shareholding In the Transferor Company is such that such
shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction of the equity shares to be issued by the Transferee

Company, the Transferee Company shall round the same up to the nearest whole number.



SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountanty

7.3.  As mentioned in Para 6.2 valuation approaches are not applicable. Accordingly, the
prescribed format as required by circular number NSE/CML/2017/12 of NSE and
LIST/COMP/02/2017-18 of BSE is given below:

| -

Income Approach NA NA
Market Approach NA NA
Relative value per share NA

NA = Not Adopted / Not Applicable

7.4. We believe that the above ratio is fair and equitable considering that all the shareholders of
MTL are and will, upon amalgamation, remain ultimate beneficial owners of PBFL in the same
ratio (inter-se} as they hold shares of PBFL through MTL prior to the amalgamation and that
as mentioned hereinabove the interest of other shareholders in PBFL remains unaffected.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For S5PA & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 128851W

IBBI Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126

b

\1

—

-

kram Jlain,
Partner
Membership Number: 114613
Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10210
UDIN: 22114613AHUEUR2736

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2022
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Chartered Accountants
I1st Floor, “ Arjun”, Plot Mo, 6 A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400 - 058 INDIA.
Tel.: 91 (22) 2670 4376 /77

91 (22) 2670 3682
Wehsite : www.sspa.in

Date: March 21, 2023

To

The Audit Committee, The Board of Directors,

PB Fintech Limited Makesense Technologies Limited
Plot No. 119, Sector 44, Plot No. 123, Sector 44,
Gurugram — 122 001, Gurugram — 122 001,

Haryana Haryana

Re: Clarification letter on fair equity share exchange ratio report dated April 26, 2022 on the
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited ("MTL") with

PB Fintech Limited (“PBFL") and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”)

We, SSPA & Co., Chartered Accountants, refer to the communication received from the
management of MTL and PBFL regarding observation letters dated January 06, 2023, issued by
BSE Limited (“BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited {"NSE") in connection with the
Scheme.

We have issued the fair equity share exchange ratio report dated April 26, 2022, for the proposed
Scheme ("Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio Report”).

The observation letters dated January 06, 2023, issued by BSE and NSE state that: “Company shall
ensure that the financials In the scheme including financials considered for voluation report are
not for period more than 6 months old”,

In this connection, the management of MTL has provided us with following additional

documents:

. Statement of unaudited financial results of MTL for the nine months period ended
December 31, 2022 (“9ME Dec22").

In connection with the observation letters dated January 06, 2023, issued by BSE and NSE, we

hereby confirm that, there is no impact on the Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio Report dated
April 26, 2022, if we consider the statement of unaudited financial results of MTL for 9ME Dec22.

e



SSPA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

SCOPE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

This letter to be read in conjunction and consistently with the Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio
Report for the proposed amalgamation of MTL with PBFL in terms of the Scheme. All terms and
clauses of the said report shall apply to this letter unless expressly modified herein,

Capitalized terms used herein, which are not defined, shall have the meanings set forth in the
Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio Report issued dated April 26, 2022.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For 55PA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registration Number; 128851W
IBBI Registered Valuer No.: |BBI/RV-E/06/2020/126

'Pmﬁﬂ < Ned

Parag Ved

Partner

ICAlI Membership Number: 102432

Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10092
UDIN: 23102432BGUAICAST6

Place: Mumbai
Date: March 21, 2023
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

Submitted to

PB FINTECH LIMITED AND MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

FAIRNESS OPINION

On valuation report provided by

SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants

On

Scheme of Amalgamation of

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

With

PB FINTECH LIMITED
(TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

BY
M/s SPA CAPITAL ADVISORS LTD.

25, C-Block, Community Centre,
Janak Puri, New Delhi.
Tel: 011-45675585/011-45675558
Fax: 25572763

Website: www.spacapital.com

“Everything we hear is an opinion, not a fact. Everything we see is a perspective, not the
truth.”

April 26, 2022

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

The Audit Committee, The Board of Directors,

PB Fintech Limited Makesense Technologies Limited
Plot No. 119, Sector 44, Plot No. 123, Sector 44,
Gurugram —122 001, Gurugram —122 001,

Haryana Haryana

RE: Fairness Opinion on Valuation Report provided by SSPA & Co. Chartered
Accountants for the proposed amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited

(‘MTL’) with PB Fintech Limited (‘PBFL’)

PURPOSE ]

We have been engaged to give fairness opinion on the report provided by SSPA & Co.
Chartered Accountants dated, April 26, 2022, for the purpose of proposed
amalgamation of MTL, having its registered office at Plot No. 123, Sector-44,
Gurugram- 122001, Haryana, India, with PBFL, having its registered office at Plot No.
119, Sector-44, Gurugram-122001, India, u/s Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The fairness opinion report is required to be submitted to the stock exchanges to
facilitate compliance with Regulation 11 and Regulation 37 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March

10, 2017, as amended from time to time.

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

[ BACKGROUND

PB Fintech Limited (Transferee Company):

PB Fintech Limited (‘PBFL’), was incorporated on June 04,2008 as Etechaces Marketing
and Consulting Private Limited'. The name was subsequently changed to PB Fintech
Private Limited on September 18, 2020,to emphasise the nature of the fintech business
and subsequently converted to a public limited company on June 30, 2021. PBFL owns
the brands Policybazaar and Paisabazaar. The Policybazaar and Paisabazaar platform
offerings address the large and highly underpenetrated online insurance and lending
markets. These brands provides convenient access to insurance, credit and other
financial products and aims to create awareness amongst Indian households about the

financial impact of death, disease and damage.

The equity shares of PBFL are listed on BSE limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.

Share capital: The share capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 31
December 2021 is as follows:

Particulars Amount in INR
Authorised Share Capital

49,05,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each 98,10,00,000

9,50,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 20 each 1,90,00,000

Total 100,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

44,94,99,806 equity shares of INR 2 each 82,24,69,000

Total 82,24,69,000

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

Makesense Technologies Limited (Transferor Company):

MTL was incorporated on September 21, 2010. MTL holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares
(~13.32%) in PBFL of face value INR 2 each as on date. MTL is a joint venture between
Info Edge (India) Limited and MacRitchie Investments Pte. Ltd.

Share capital: The share capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 31
December 2021 is as follows:

Particulars Amount in INR
Authorised Share Capital

2,55,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 25,50,00,000

30,00,000 preference shares of INR 100 each 30,00,00,000

Total 55,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
12,16,500 equity shares of INR 10 each 1,21,65,000
Total 1,21,65,000

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

[ TRANSACTION

We understand that this transaction involves amalgamation of MTL into PBFL
pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

INFORMATION RELIED UPON

We have prepared the Fairness Opinion Report on the basis of the information provided
to us and inter-alia the following:

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation; and

Valuation Report dated April 26, 2022, issued by SSPA & Co. Chartered
Accountants.

Standalone audited financial statements of MTL for the 9 months period
ended December 31, 2021.

Other information as provided by the management of ‘PBFL" and ‘'MTL" and
its representatives.

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

[ VALUATION APPROACHES USED BY SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants ]

As per the Valuation Report issued by SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants;

"MTL as on the date of this report holds 5,98,90,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2
each fully paid-up of PBFL. Upon the effective date, pursuant to amalgamation of MTL
with PBFL, the entire shareholding of MTL in PBFL will be cancelled and the
shareholders of MTL would be issued same number of fully paid-up equity shares of
PBFL, which they own indirectly through their holding in MTL as on the effective date.
Pursuant to the amalgamation, there would be no change in the paid-up share capital of
PBFL. As mentioned above, post-amalgamation the shareholders of MTL will hold the
same number of shares as MTL holds in PBFL. Consequently, there is no impact on the
shareholding pattern of other shareholders of PBFL and therefore no valuation of PBFL
and MTL is required.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, there is no additional consideration being
discharged under the Scheme except same number of shares of PBFL being issued to the
shareholders of MTL in lieu of shares held by MTL in PBFL respectively (which will get
cancelled). Thus, for every fresh issue of share of PBFL to the shareholders of MTL,
there is a corresponding cancellation of an existing PBFL share as held by MTL. Also,
there would be no change in the aggregate shareholding of other shareholders in PBFL
and it shall not affect the interest of other shareholders of PBFL”

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited




@ SPA

THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS

[ CONCLUSION

SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants, and subject to the contents of this document, our

work as described herein, to the best of our knowledge and belief, we are of the
opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Share Exchange Ratio, as recommended by the
Valuer, is fair in relation to the proposed Draft Scheme of Amalgamation.

Disclaimer: The Final Report has been prepared for the internal and exclusive use of the Board
of Directors of ‘"MITL" and ‘PBFL’ (the “Board of Directors”) in support of the decisions to be
taken by them. Therefore, the Final Report may not be disclosed, in whole or in part, to any
third party or used for any purpose whatsoever other than those indicated in the Engagement
and in the Final Report itself, provided that the Final Report may be transmitted to the experts
appointed in compliance with the law and its content may be disclosed publicly where required
by regulations of the Indian authorities. Any other use, in whole or in part, of the Final Report
will have to be previously agreed and authorized in writing by SPA Capital Advisors Limited
(SPA). In preparing the Final Report, SPA has relied upon and assumed, without independent
verification, the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the information and the financial
data provided by ‘MTL’ and 'PBFL’. SPA has therefore relied upon all specific information as
received and declines any responsibility should the results presented be affected by the lack of
completeness or truthfulness of such information. Publicly available information deemed
relevant for the purpose of the analyses contained in the Final Report has also been used.
Therefore the Final Report is based on: (i) our interpretation of the information which ‘MTL’
and ‘PBFL’, as well as their representatives and advisers, have supplied to us to date; (ii) our
understanding of the terms upon which ‘MTL" and ‘PBFL’ intends to consummate the
Transaction (iii) the assumption that the Transaction will be consummated in accordance with
the expected terms and within the expected time periods. The Final Report and the Opinion
concern exclusively for the purpose of proposed amalgamation and do not constitute an opinion
by SPA as to the absolute value of the shares of ‘MITL" and ‘PBFL’.

For SPA Capital Advisors Limited
SEBI Regn. No.: INM 000010825)
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(Khushboo Tanwar) (Anish Kumar)
Vice President Vice President

Fairness Opinion on Valuation report of SSPA & Co. Chartered Accountants,
By: SPA Capital Advisors Limited 7| Page
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DCS/AMAL/MI/IP/2624/2022-23 “E-Letter” January 06, 2023

The Company Secretary,
PB Fintech Ltd.

Plot No. 119, Sector 44,
Gugaon, Haryana-122001.

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter regarding the Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited with PB Fintech

Limited and their respective Shareholders.

We are in receipt of the Scheme of Amalgamation filed by PB Fintech Limited as required under SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated January 05, 2023, has inter alia given the following
comment(s) on the Scheme of Amalgamation:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

. H &S

“Company shall ensure that it discloses all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution
initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters and directors,
before Hon'ble NCLT and Shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme.”

“Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by the Company, after
filing the scheme with the Stock Exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the websites
of the Listed Company and the Stock Exchanges.”

“Company shall ensure compliance with the SEBI Circulars issued from time to time.”
“The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

“Company is advised that the information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved in the Scheme shall
be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the ICDR
Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed,
which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.”

“Company shall ensure that the Transferee Company discloses the value of assets and liabilities that are being
transferred to PBFL, details of agreement entered into between PBFL and shareholders of MTL and reasons for
withdrawing previous scheme of arrangement between PBFL and MTL as a part of explanatory statement or
notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the Company to the shareholders
while seeking their approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for valuation report are
not for period more than 6 months old.”

“Company is advised that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideration as provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the Shareholders.”

“Company is advised that the proposed Equity Shares to be issued in terms of the ‘Scheme’ shall mandatorily
be in demat form only.”

a1 )
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j) “Company shall ensure that the ‘Scheme’ shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying with the
relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.”

k) “Company to ensure that no changes to the draft Scheme except those mandated by the regulators/ authorities
/ tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.”

1) “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition to be
filed before Hon'ble NCLT and the Company obliged to bring the observations to the notice of Hon'ble NCLT.”

m) “Company is advised to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and
regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the proposed scheme.”

n) “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before Hon'ble NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft Scheme by SEBI/Stock Exchange. Hence, the Company is
not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to
SEBI again for its comments/observations/representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

i. To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the Exchange for
further dissemination on Exchange website.

ii. To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents are
disseminated on their (company) website.

iii. To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to those matters
having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to
enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the shareholders, while
seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted company involved in the format prescribed for
abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated March 10, 2017.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the date of this Letter, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and
Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any other requirements.
Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a
Notice of the proposed scheme of compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the
Companies Act 2013 as the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or objections

if any.
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In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served upon the Exchange, the
Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice along with the relevant documents of the
proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking Exchange’s representations
or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be
accepted. You may please refer to circular dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,

sd/- Sd/-
Prasad Bhide Mahek Jaju
Senior Manager Assistant Manager

e
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/31102 January 06, 2023

The Company Secretary
PB Fintech Limited
Plot No. 119, Sector 44,
Gugaon, Haryana, 122001.
Kind Attn.: Mr. Bhasker Joshi

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited
(“Transferor Company”) with PB Fintech Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective
Shareholders.

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with PB Fintech Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders under sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide application dated May 18, 2022.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/31102_TI dated October 03, 2022, submitted to SEBI and pursuant
to SEBI Master circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/665 dated November 23, 2021 and Regulation
94(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, SEBI vide its letter dated January 05, 2023 has inter alia given the
following comment(s) on the draft scheme of amalgamation:

a. Company shall ensure that it discloses all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings,
prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its promoters
and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme.

b. Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing the
Scheme with the Stock Exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the websites of the
listed Company and the Stock Exchanges.

c. The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

d. Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the unlisted Companies involved in the scheme
shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of
the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution
to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.

e. The Transferee Company shall ensure to disclose the value of details of assets & liabilities that are being
transferred to PBFL, Details of agreement entered into between PBFL and Shareholders of MTL and
reasons for withdrawing previous Scheme of arrangement between PBFL and MTL, as a part of
explanatory statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by
the Company to the shareholders while seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

J- Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including ﬁﬁﬁ?&éﬁ%{y S%%zjsidered for valuation
report are not for period more than 6 months old.

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, Jan 6, 2023 15:08:41 IST

Q NS E Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of IndiaLimitad | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Elock G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nseindia.com | CIN U6T120MH199 2PLCO&9T 69
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D N s E Continuation Sheet

g. Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideration as provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the Shareholders.

h. Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the “Scheme” shall
mandatorily be in demat form only

i. Company shall ensure that the “Scheme” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying with the
relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.

j. Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme except those mandated by the
regulators/authorities/ tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBL

k.  Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition
to be filed before NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

I Company shall comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and
regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the proposed
Scheme.

m. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ Stock Exchange. Hence, the
Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given in
terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No objection” in terms of
Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with
NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws
and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from January 06, 2023, within which the Scheme
shall be submitted to NCLT.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act /Regulation/rule/bye
laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain approval from other
department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately take up matter with the concerned
departments fOI' approval, 1f any. This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, Jan 6, 2023 15:08:41 IST

Q NS E Location: NSE
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The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each point of
Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > Issue > Scheme of
arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Dipti Chinchkhede
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: DIPTI VIPIL CHINCHKHEDE
Date: Fri, Jan 6, 2023 15:08:41 IST

G NS E Location: NSE



Date; 15 July 2022

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

Mational Stock Exchange of India Lud

Exchange Flaza, 5th Floor,

Plot No.C/1, G Block,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai — 400 051

[Serip Code: POLICYBZR|

Sub: Application for obtaining approval under Regulation 37 of the Securities and Excha nge
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“LODR Regulations™) for the Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies
Limited (*Transferor Company™) with PB Fintech Limited (*Transferee Company™ or
“Company™) and their respective sharchalders under Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) (“Scheme").

Ref: Report on Complaint_in_terms of Para I{ANG) of the SERI Master Circular No,

SEBVHO/CFD/DILUCIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 as amended

from tim ime (“SEBI Master Circular™).

Dear Sic/ Madam,

This is in reference to the Scheme filed by the Company under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations with National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE™),

As per Para [(A)NG) of the SEBI Master Circular, the Company is inter-alia required to submit a
‘Report on Complaints’ containing the details of complaints received by the Company on the
Scheme. Accordingly, we attach herewith a *Report on Complaints’, as Annexure-1 to this letter,

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Company, ie.,
www.pbfintech.in, as per requirement of the aforementioned said SEBI Master Circular.

We request you 1o take the above on record as compliance under the applicable provisions of the
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circulars,

Thanking You
Yours sincerely
For PB Fintech Limit

Date: July 15, 2022
Place: Gurugram

policybazaar@@)  paisabazaar@ QuickFIXcars doc¢

PB FINTECH LIMITED |

(Formerly Known As PB Fintech Private Limited/Etechaces Marketing And Consulting Private Limited)
Registered Office Address : Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram-122001 (Haryana)
Telephone No. : 0124-4562907, Fax : 0124-4562902 E-mail : enquiry@policybazaar com
Website : www.pbfintech.in CIN : L51909HR2008PLCO37998

@



pb

Annexure -1

COMPLAINTS R RT

[Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited with PB Fintech Limited and
their respective shareholders]

Fart A

Farticulirs Mumher

1. Mumber of complaints received directly Mil

2. MNumber of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges SEBI Nil

3. Total Number of complainis/comments received (1+2) Mil

4, Mumber of complaints resolved Mot applicable

5. Number of complaints pending Mot applicable
Part B

Wameof complainait Lt abieomplaint Status
(RS oIved Poniling

Mot Applicable

pOIiC}’baZB.EIIﬁ paisabazaar@ QuickFIXcars doc¢

PB FINTECH LIMITED

(Formerly Known As PB Fintech Private Limited/Etechaces Marketing And Consulting Private Limited)
Registered Office Address : Flot No. 119, Sector-d44, Gurugram-122001 (Haryana)
Telephone No. : 0124-4562007, Fax : 0124-4562902 E-mail : enquiry@policybazaar.com
Website : www.pbfintech.in CIN : L51909HR2008PLC0O37998
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Date: 23" June 2022

The Secretary

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street

Mumbai — 400 001

|BSE Scrip Code: 343390)

Sub:  Application for obtaining approval under Regulation 37 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“LODR  Regulations™) for the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Makesense Technologies Limited (*Transferor Company™) with PB Fintech Limited
(“Transferee Company” or “Company™) and their respective sharcholders under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)
{(*Scheme™)

Ref:  Report on Complaint in terms of Para 1{A)(6) of the SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBVHO/CFDVDILI/CIR/PZ021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 as amended
from time to time (“SEBI Master Circular™).

Dear Sit/ Madam,

This is in reference to the Scheme filed by the Company under Regulation 37 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations with BSE Limited (“BSE™).

As per Para I{(A)6) of the SEBI Master Circular, the Company is inter-alia required to submit
a ‘Report on Complaints” containing the details of complaints received by the Company on
the Scheme. Accordingly, we attach herewith a ‘Report on Complaints’, as Annexure-1 to
this letter.

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Company, i.e.,
www,pbfintech.in, as per requirement of the aforementioned said SEBI Master Circular.

We request you to take the above on record as compliance under the applicable provisions of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI
Circulars.

Thanking You

Yours sincerely
For PE Fintech Limited

b L]
W
Blisker Joshi

Company Secretary

policybazaar@@)  paisabazaar@) — QuickFiIXcars

doc
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PB FINTECH LIMITED

Registered Office Address : Plot No. 119, Sector-44, Gurugram-122001 (Haryana)
Telephone No. : 0124-4562907, Fax : 0124-4562902 E-mail : enquiry@policybazaar.com
Website : wow. pbfintech.in CIN : L51909HR2008FLC03 7998
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Annexure -1

COMPLAINTS REPORT
[Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited with PB Fintech Limited and
their respective shareholders]
Part A
Particulars Numbey
I. | Number of complaints received directly Mil
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges’ SEBI Mil
3 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4, | Mumber of complaints resolved Mot applicable
5. | Mumber of complaints pending Mot applicable
Part B

Mame ol compliamant Diate of complaint Status
{Resolved/Pending)

Mot Applicable
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DETAILS OF ONGOING ADJUDICATION & RECOVERY PROCEEDINGS, PROSECUTION
INITIATED AND ALL OTHER ENFORCEMENT ACTION TAKEN AGAINST THE
APPLICANT COMPANY 2 / TRANSFEREE COMPANY-PB FINTECH LIMITED, ITS
PROMOTERS AND DIRECTORS

1. A notice under Section 148 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) was received by PB Fintech
Limited for the assessment year 2015-16. In the aforesaid notice the Assessing Officer (“A0O”) had
stated that he had reasons to believe income of X1,189.51 million on account of share capital
including share premium received during the relevant year has escaped assessment. In response to
the aforesaid notice, the Company filed its objection to the re-opening of the case and while
disposing the objections, the AO shared the report of DDIT (I&CI) in which it was mentioned the
transaction of share premium during the year is considered explained. Aggrieved by the actions of
the Income tax department, the Company filed an appeal before the Punjab and Haryana High
Court (“PHHC”) on February 24, 2022. Stay has been provided by the PHHC and the matter is
currently pending.

2. An order dated March 16, 2023 was passed u/s 250 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) by the
CIT (Appeals) for assessment year 2016-17 for PB Fintech Limited “the company”. CIT
(Appeals) in its order has confirmed the additions u/s 68 done by the Ld. AO stating that the
Company has failed to prove the genuineness of the transactions and creditworthiness of the
resident investor(other than venture capitalist) and also has made additions u/s 56(2)(viib) being
monies as share premium received from venture capital funds in excess of NAV or any other value
to calculated by the Ld. AO [while giving effect to the order passed by CIT(A)] by stating that our
company is not venture capital undertaking which is prerequisite condition for non-applicability of
section 56(2)(viib) of the Act. Further, the CIT (Appeals) has allowed relief to company by
deleting the addition done by Ld. AO of ESOP expenses and also allowing the setoff of losses
against the aforesaid additions. The company has not yet received the notice of demand as the
appeal effect is pending. Aggrieved by the outcome of CIT (Appeal) order, the company shall file
an appeal before the Income Tax Appellant Tribunal (ITAT) against the order of CIT (Appeal).

3. Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI) Mumbai is investigating PB
Fintech Limited and its subsidiary companies i.e Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited,
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited for verification of GST input claim by
them and in pursuant to this DGGI is issuing summons to their vendors for providing the proof of
services rendered by them to insurance companies. Various summons were issued and the
Company have complied to it timely.

4. Priyank Singh vs. Yashish Dahiya, Alok Bansal, Sarbvir Singh and Sharat Dhall: The complainant
alleged that his policy has been wrongly issued with only Petrol fuel type and when he came to
know the same, he requested the insurance company to add CNG in the fuel type. The
complainant alleged that even after the inspection of the vehicle and submitting all the relevant
documents his request was rejected by the insurance company on hyper-technical grounds. The
case is listed for the Complainant’s Evidence before the Consumer District Redressal Forum,
Lucknow on July 22, 2023.

5. Mr. Kaushik Dutta, has been arrayed as a defendant in a civil suit for damages, along with 127
others, filed by Satyam Computers Services Ltd. (“Plaintiff”) in 2012 before the City Civil Court
at Hyderabad. The civil suit has been filed against the erstwhile management of the Plaintiff,
certain chartered accountancy firms, and the partners/directors of such chartered accountancy
firms, including Mr. Kaushik Dutta (as he then was) and others, alleging, inter alia, breach of
fiduciary, statutory and contractual obligations by the chartered accountancy firms in carrying out

policybazaar@  paisabazaar@ QuickFIXcars do¢
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the audit of the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff has prayed for a direction to the defendants to pay Rs.
2,758.48 million, interest at the rate of 18% per annum on the said amount, along with exemplary
and punitive damages to Plaintiff. Mr. Kaushik Dutta has filed a written statement denying the
allegations of the Plaintiff. The matter is currently pending.

6. Ms. VeenaVikas Mankar received a notice in 2021 u/s 148 the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) for
Assessment Year 2017-18 where in information was sought on 7 different points. Ms.
VeenaVikas Mankar had contested the legality of the notice. However, in 2022, the Hon’ble
Supreme Court of India passed a judgement in a similar case which confirmed the validity of these
notices. Subsequent to which, she has submitted the information required with the department.
The department passed an order u/s 148A(d) dropping 5 of the 7 points specified in the notice.
There are only 2 points in dispute for which she has already submitted her contention on 7th
February 2023. The response from the department is awaited.

7. Ms. Veena Vikas Mankar have filed a case in the Mumbai High Court contesting the Employees
Provident Fund Organisation’s claim. The order dated 22" September, 2021 was passed by the
Court granting ad interim reliefs, which was to continue till the next date of hearing i.e 20th
October, 2021. The court modified the order dated 20% October 2021 to reflect extension of the
interim reliefs. This matter was scheduled to be listed next on 01% December 2021. On the above
mentioned date it was not listed, and has not been listed since.

Notes:

1. Apart from the details given above, the Company and Directors may be involved in various legal
proceedings from time to time arising in the ordinary course of business. These proceedings
notices may be in the nature of notices for tax/duty disputes labour disputes, third party claims,
writ petitions, civil suit, arbitration proceedings including counter claims, complaints pursuant to
Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, complaints disputes related to supplier dues
etc., pending before various adjudicating forums. Further, in terms of the Company’s ‘Policy on
Determination of Materiality for Disclosure of Events or Information’ framed in accordance with
Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, there is no outstanding litigation that has not been disclosed to
the Stock Exchanges. Also, based on said policy, there is no pending matter against the Company
or its Directors, which if result in an adverse outcome may materially and adversely affect the
Company’s operations or its financial position, or affect the positions of Directors of the
Company, as the case may be.

2. The above mentioned details of ongoing adjudication and recovery proceedings prosecution
initiated and all other enforcement action taken if any against the Company and Directors are
provided as on 31 March 2023.

For PB Fintech Limited

Bhasker 2,

Joshi s
Bhasker Joshi
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

policybazaar@  paisabazaar@)  QuickFIXcars Joc:
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( \/\J SHARMA GOEL & CO. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit

and Loss (inchiding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act”)in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act {5As). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
ststements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial staternents.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
andit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The ather
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
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standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
o be matenially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management*s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Owr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can anise from
fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,
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s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, fiture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B, Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration not paid by the Company to its directors during the year.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements, if any.

i  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses.

i,  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of ils knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatspever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
{(*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiarics;

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v, Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Date: A W 0¥ Jol L (Partner)
Place: Noida Membership No. 086441
UDIN: 22086441 ATNGSUS428
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section
of our report to the Members of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i The Company does not have any fixed Assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i) of the order is not
applicable.

ii. {a) The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)a) of the
Order is not applicable.

b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of cuwrrent assets. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable, )

iii. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not made any investment in, provided any guaraniee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the order are
not applicable.

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guaraniees and securities provided, as

applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

¥i. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Henee, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Value added Tax,
Goods and service tax, Cess and any other statutory dues. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears,
as a1 March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
wherever applicable.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no dues outstanding
which are disputed as on 31st March 2022 in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961},

ix. {a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence, reporting
under clause 3{ix)}{a) of the Order is not applicable.
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{(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority or any lender.

{¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(¢) of the Order is not
applicable.

{d) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not
applicable.

{¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

{f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associates companies, and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

S (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)}a) of the
Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable.

xi. {2) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the vear.
{(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{¢) During the year the company has not received any whistler blower complaints.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiti.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect io applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  In our opinion, Internal audit system is not applicable on the company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

XV, In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companics Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  (a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and as fully explained in Note
27 to the Ind-AS financial statements, based on the management internal legal counsel
assessment, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and has also intimated the Reserve Bank of India by way
of application, subsequent to year ended March 31, 2022. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.
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Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

{c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3p(xvil{c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

{d) The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses during the year amounting to Rs, 628/- and not incurred
any cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year,

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the fiture viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

AX. In our opinion, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the compeny. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

Sanj la
Date: & \(* 6 - Lol L (Partner)
Place: Noida Membership No. 086441

UDIN: 22086441 AJNGSU9428
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAKESENSE
TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial conirols
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing therisk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Sanjeev Mitla
Date: 3 0% 2ot 2 (Partner)
Place: Noida Membership No. 086441

UDIN: 2208644 L AINGEU9423
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MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Az at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% "000) (% '000)

Assets
Financial assats

(i} Investments 3a) 41,512,754 3,230,316
Hon-current tax asset 4(a) 28 =
Total non-current assets 41,512,732 3,230,316
Current Assets
Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 3} 108 84

i) Other financial assets 3e) 12,621 13,359
Other current assets 6 15 .
Total current assets 12,745 13,453
Total Assets 41,525,527 3,243,769
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital T 12,165 12,165
Other equity -] 37,133,666 3,231,429
Total equity 37,145,831 3,243,594
LIABILITIES
MNon-current liabilities
Non-current tax liability (ret) 4(b) - 7
Deferred tax liabilities 5 4,379,508 -
Total non-current liabilities 4,379,508 7
Current liabilities
Financial Rabilities

(i) Trade payables 9
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
total sutstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 163 150
Other current liabilities 10 25 15
Taotal current liabilities 188 168
Total equity & liabilities 41,525,527 3,243,769

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 are in integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Sharma Goal & Co. LLP
ICAI Firn Registration Numbe
Chartered Aduountan)

Sanjeoy Mitla S/ M
Partnet N - v

Wn:ht!sﬁﬁﬁw

Place: Noida
Dare: May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

MakeSense Technologies Limited

CIN:U74999HRI0OLOPLCOD2002

T

Chintan Thakkar Sanjeev Bikhchandani
[Director) {Director)

DIN :0OBTEL73 DIN:00065640

Place: Maoida

Date: May 24, 2021




MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

MNaote Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% '000) [ "D0a)
Income
Other income 11 643 897
Total Income 643 897
|Expensas
Finance costs 12 . &
Crther expensss 13 1,271 449
Total Expenses 1,271 455
prafit/(loss) before tax and exceptional item (628) 442
Exceptional item 22 55,461,884 -
Profit before tax 55,461,256 442
Tax expense
(1) Current tax &4 111
(2} Deferred tax 5 5,344,837 =
Profit for the year 49,116,355 331
Other compreherdive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain on financial assets measured at Fair value through OCI (17,179,447 -
Income tax relating to this 1,965,329 -
Other comprehensive income/f{loss) for the year, net of income tax [15,214,118)| -
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,902,237 331
Earnings per share: 15
Basic eamnings per share - after exceptional item 40,375.14 0.27
Basic earnings per share - before exceptionzl item 10.57) 0.27
Giluted earnings per share -after exceptional item 40,375.14 0.27
Diluted earnings per share - before exceptional item {0.57) 037

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 are in integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of Sharm Goel & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Reglstration 3N/N500012
Chartered Accounitans

sanjeev m

Partner 7 e 1 ¥
Memhtmmi;h.'-W
Place: Noida

Date: May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
MakeSense Technologies Limited
CIN:LU749949H REUIDPLCCEIEDI

et

Chintan Thakkar
[Director)
DI 00678173

Place: Noida
Date: May 24, 2022

b

Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director]
DIN:0D065640
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MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

a. Eguity share capital

Particulars Mote Armaunt [T '00G)
As at April 01, 2020 12,165
Ehangu iﬁ!duilx ihlrﬁ't!Eibﬂd’uﬁE m!Eir 7 =
As at March 31, 2021 12,168
(Charges in equity share capital during the year 7 :
A3 at March 31, 2032 12,165

b, Other Equity
1% "000)
|Particulars Resarve & Surplus Equity instruments
through other Total
Share premium account Retained Eamings compre hensive income
Balance a5 at April 01, 2020 3,241 648 {10,525} 3,231 099
Prafit for the vigar . 331 331 |
Balance as a2 March 31, 2021 3,241,643 !Ii_l.]l.!l 231,
[t 'D00}
[Particutars Reserye B Surphus Equity instruments
through other Total
Share premium account Retalned Earndngs comprehensive income
|Batance as at April 01, 3021 3,241,648 [10,219) 3,331429
Prodit for the year - 45 116,355 . 459,116,355
Cther Comprehensive Income; (lossh for the year = : [15.214.218) 15,214,11
Balance as at March 31, 2002 3,241,648 49,106,135 [15.214,118) 1?,133'&5-5'

The accompanying notes 1 1o 28 are in irtagral part of the Financial $tasements,

As per cur report of even date attached
Fou and on bena f of Sharma Goel & Co. LLP

Sanpey Mitla > At =
Partngs ! il F)
Membership osneeler
Phace: Maida

Date: May 24, 2022

GAIN/NE00012

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors.
MakeSense Technologies Limited

CIN:UTAS99HRI010FLODG 2002

e

Chintan Thakkar
[Direcior)
N DO67TELTI

Place: Maoida
Dage: Mary 24, 2022

D dioe.

Sanjeey Bikhchandani
[Dersctar)
DIN-DDOGEEL0



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

1. Reporting Entity

Makesense Technologies Limited (the company) is a limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Plot No. 123,
Sector 44, Gurugram, Gurgaon, Haryana 122001,

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 24, 2022.
2. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended by notification dated March 31, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and
gther criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services
and the time between the rendering of service and their realisation in cash and cash eguivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and noncurrent classification of assets
and liahilities.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off in thousands (as per the requirement of Schedule III), unless otherwise stated.

(Ii) Historical Cost Convention

The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value / amortised cost less diminution, if any
B. Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period'’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions or make
reversals of provisions made In earlier years, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
/ received from the tax authorities.



Deferred tax is recognized for all the temporary differences, between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax
assets. Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only if it is probable that sufficient future taxable
amounts will be avallable against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where the company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and It Is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the
differences will reverse in the foresesable future and taxable profit will be available against which such temporary
differences can be utilised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxable authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basls, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whaole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash in hand, amount at banks and other short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In
value.



E. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
» the profit attributable to the shareholders of the company
% Profit after exceptional items and tax
% Profit before exceptional items and after tax
« by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elements in equity shares issued during the year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into

account:
« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholder and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares

F. Financial Instruments
(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets In the following measurement categories:

s those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss),

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value through ather comprehensive income, and
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For financial assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded either through profit or loss or through

other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
control entities these are carried at cost less diminution, if any. However, the gains or losses with respect to

other investments that are not held for trading are recognised through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financlal assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments, on instrument to instrument
basis, as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI that are not held for trading. For other investments
which are required to be carried at fair value are routed through Profit & loss account.




Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies
its debt instruments:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) : Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flow represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit & loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI.

« Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or far value
through OCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other income in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial
assets Is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than investments
in equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, which are carried at cost less diminution,
if any. The financial investment which are not held for trade is subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments, on
instrument to instrument basis, as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI that are not held for trading.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset Is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

s retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.



Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not

derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvernent in the financial asset.

(v) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are dassified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to short term maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability (or a part of finandial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

{vi) Income recognition
Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amartized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income Is included in
finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

G. Exceptional items

Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of such
significance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial statements to understand the impact

in a more meaningful manner.

Following are considered as exceptional items -

a) Gain or loss on disposal of investments to wholly owned subsidiaries at higher or lower than the cost/
book value

b) Write down of investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates which are carried at
cost in accordance with IND AS 27 to recoverable amount, as well as reversals of write down.

c) Impact of any retrospective amendment requiring any additional charge to profit or loss.

d) Gain on fair valuation of Investment reclassified as per Ind AS 109

H. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accounting policies. The
estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation



of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, Is in respect of impairment of non-
current investments and has been discussed below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of current tax

expense and payable, employee benefits and fair value of unlisted subsidiary entities have been discussed Iin their
respective policies.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

a) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable
b) Estimation of Deferred tax asset/liability
¢) Impairment of Investments in subsidiary/JVs and associates

1. Estimation of Impairment on Non-Current Investment

The Company carries reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is accounted for,

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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11, Other Income

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% 000} (% ‘000)
Interest Income on fived deposits with banks B3 a7
643 897
12, Finance Costs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% '000) (% "o00)
Bank charges - B
- ]
13. Other Expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
% '000) (% “000)
Rent - 22
Legal and Professional Expenses 1,260 393
Miscellaneous Expenses 11 34
1,171 449
14. Auditors Remuneration
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
% "000) {% "000)
Aaudit Fees [Excluding GST) 150 150
150 150
—
15, Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share [EFS)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(%) L]
Praofit attributable to Equity Shareholders [Profit after exceptional iterns and tax) (%) 49,116,354,802 330,495
(692.463) 330,495
Profit/(loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders {Profit belore exceptional iterns and after tax) (%)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 1,216,500 1,216,500
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of Rs, 10 each (%)-alter exceptional item 40,375.14 0.27
Basic & Diluted Eamings Per Equity Share of Rs, 10 each (%)-belore exceptional item (0.57) 0.27
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23. Income Tax Expense

Thizs note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity

and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

a) Income Tax expense

|Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% '000) (% "000)
Current tax on profit for the year B4 111
Total current tax expenses B4 111
Deferred Tax 6,344,837 -
Total 6,344,901 111
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
|Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(% '000} (% '000)
Profit/{loss) before exeptional item and tax (628) 442
Tax @ 25.168% (Previous year 25.168%) (158) 111
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating
taxable income:
Others 232 -
Deferred tax on fair valuation gain on investment 6,344,837 -
Total 6,344,901 111
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5. Financlal Risk And Capltal Managemant

A} Financial risk management framework

The Company's boand of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework, The board has established the
Hisk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report
1 baoard on itS scthvities.

The Company’s risk management policies are sstablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Compary, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and fo monstor risks
and adharence to kmits. Risk management policles and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company,
thugh its training and mansgement standards and procedures, alms to maintain @ disciplined and comtructive control environment in which a8 employees understand their

rodes and obligations.

This nole explains the sources of rsk which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entity manages the risk,

Risk Exposire arising from Measurament Management of risk
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade recebvables, financlal | Aging analysis Diversification of bank
assets measured at amortised cost. Cradit ratings deposits, credit limits and
regular monitoring.
Ligquidity rsk Barrowings and other liabilities Ralling cash fow Availability of surplus cash,
Torecasts committed
credit Enes and bormmowing
fucilithes
Markat rick - intevest rate | Long-term borrowings at variable rate Sensitivity analysi Interest rate swaps

It Company's risk managament is carrled cut by a treasury department (Company treaswy) wnder policdes approved by the board of directors. Company treasury kentifies,
financisl risks in clese cooperation with the Company's operating units.

Credit risk

Cash and cash squivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks b limited &5 the company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by
external credit rating sgencies, sccordingly the Company considers that the related credit risk Is low, impairment on these Bems sre measured on the 12-menth expected
credil lovs bass,

Interest rate sk

Interest rate risk can be elther fair valie Interest rate sk or cash flow interest rate rsk. Fale value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing
irvestments because of Muctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow nterest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of Aoating interest bearing investments will luctuate
becauise of Nuctuations in the IMerest e

Exposiure tointerest rate risk

The Company's inlerest rate risk srses from borrowings . Bormowings issued at fived rates exposes to fabr valus intarest rate rsk. The interest rate profile of the Company’s
Interest-beaning financial Instruments as reported to the management of the Company is a lollows.

Amount T 000
March 31, 2033 March 31, 2021
Flwed-rate Instrumants
Financial assets 12,028 12,085
Fimancial labilities - F
Yorl 10 e
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This is an abridged prospectus containing the information pertaining to the unlisted company, Makesense Technologies Limited
(“MTL”), involved in the Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited (the “Transferor Company” or the
“Company”’) with PB Fintech Limited (the “Transferee Company” or “PBFL”) and their respective shareholders (“Scheme of
Amalgamation”), in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 4, 2022 in accordance with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023. This abridged prospectus should be read together with the Scheme of Amalgamation.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONTAINS 08 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL
THE PAGES.

You may download the Scheme of Amalgamation from the website of PB Fintech Limited and the stock exchanges where the
equity shares of PB Fintech Limited are listed i.e. www.nseindia.com; and www.bseindia.com.

(Capitalised terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them under the Scheme of Amalgamation)

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
CIN: U74999HR2010PLC092002, Date of Incorporation: September 21, 2010

Registered office Corporate office Contact person E-mail and Telephone Website
Plot No. 123, Sector- Not applicable Chintan Thakkar, E-mail: makesense@infoedge.com | Not applicable
44, Gurugram, Non-Executive Telephone: +91-120-4841100
Haryana - 122 001 Director (2031)

NAME OF PROMOTER OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY: INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED*
* Info Edge (India) Limited is the promoter of the Transferor Company as on the date of this Abridged Prospectus. Upon coming into effect of
the Scheme of Amalgamation, the Transferor Company will cease to exist as it will be amalgamated with and into PBFL.

Details of Offer to Public

Type of Issue Fresh Issue Size OFS Size (by no. Total Issue Size Share Reservation
(by no. of shares (by no. of shares | Issue Under
U0 G VLT or by amount in of shares or by or by amount in 6(1)/ 6(2)
Fresh & OFS) y Rs) amount in Rs) y Rs) QIB NII RII
Not applicable

OFS: Offer for Sale

DETAILS OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND LISTING

DETAILS OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

Scheme of Amalgamation of Makesense Technologies Limited (the “Transferor Company”) with PB Fintech Limited (the
“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme” / “Scheme of Amalgamation™) is proposed

The Scheme provides for (i) amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Companys; (ii) cancellation of equity
shares of Transferee Company to the extent held by Transferor Company; and (iii) allotment of equity shares of the Transferee
Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in the proportion of equity shares held by them in the Transferor
Company.

The Appointed Date of the Scheme means the opening of the business hours of 1 April 2022 or such other date as may be approved
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench. The Effective Date of the Scheme means the last of the dates
on which the conditions specified in Clause 20 of this Scheme are complied with or are waived by the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

The Scheme shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

Rationale for the Scheme:

(i) The Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and will result in the
following benefits:

(a) streamlining of the corporate structure;




(b) pooling of resources of the Transferor Company with the resources of the Transferee Company;

(c) significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by both the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

(d) rationalisation of costs, time and efforts by eliminating multiple record keeping, administrative functions and consolidation of
financials through legal entity rationalisation; and

(e) reduction of administrative responsibilities, multiplicity of records and legal as well as regulatory compliances.

(i1) The Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders, employees and the creditors of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company.

Consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company under the Scheme:

In consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot its equity shares
on proportionate basis to shareholders of the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date, in the manner given below:

“5,98,90,000 equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid up of the Transferee Company in the proportion of the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders in the Transferor Company”

Further, upon the Scheme of Amalgamation becoming effective, all equity shares held by the Transferor Company in the share
capital of the Transferee Company (held either directly or through its nominees) shall stand cancelled.

LISTING

The equity shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any recognised stock exchanges. The equity shares of the Transferee
Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).

The equity shares of the Transferee Company, issued as consideration to the shareholders of the Transferor Company, are proposed
to be listed on BSE and NSE.

Details of OFS by Promoter(s)/ Promoter Group/ Other Selling Shareholders (upto a maximum of 10 selling shareholders)

No of Shares WACA in T per No. of Shares WACA in 2
Name Type |offered/ Amount Equit Name Type offered/ er Equi
in quity Amount in X P quity

Not applicable

P: Promoter; PG: Promoter Group; OSS: Other Selling shareholder; WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition shall be calculated on fully
diluted basis

Price Band, Minimum Bid Lot & Indicative Timelines

Price Band*

Minimum Bid Lot Size

Bid/Offer Open On

Bid/Closes Open On

Finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Initiation of Refunds

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees
Commencement of trading of Equity Shares

Not applicable

*For details of price band and basis of offer price, please refer to price band advertisement and page xx of RHP- Not applicable

Details of WACA of all shares transacted over the trailing eighteen months from the date of RHP- Not applicable

. Weighted Average Cost of Upper EI:d ?f.the Price Range of acquisition price Lowest
Period T e 7 Band is ‘X’ times the . . S A
Acquisition (in %) WACA Price- Highest Price (in %)

Trailing Eighteen Month from |Not applicable
the date of RHP
WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition shall be calculated on fully diluted basis for the trailing eighteen months from the date of RHP

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER
The face value of the Equity Shares is 2. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Price determined by our Company and the Selling

167




Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLM’s, on the basis of the assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares by way
of the Book Building Process, as stated und er “Basis for Offer Price” on page xx should not be considered to be indicative of
the market price of the Equity Shares after listing. No assurance can be given regarding frequency of trading in the Equity Shares
nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing- Not applicable

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity & equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this Issue
unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before
taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the Issuer and this Issue, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not been recommended or approved by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does, SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of the
Scheme of Amalgamation or Abridged Prospectus.

Transferor Company would be amalgamated with and into the Transferee Company. Specified attention of the investors is
invited to the section titled “Internal Risk Factors” on page 07 of this Abridged Prospectus.

PROCEDURE

The procedure with respect to public issue/ offer would not be applicable as this issue is only to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company, pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, without any cash consideration. Hence, the procedure with respect to a
General Information Document is not applicable

PRICE INFORMATION OF BRLM’s*

Issue Name +/- % change in closing| +/- % change in closing | +/- % change in closing
Name of price, (+/- % change in | price, (+/- % change in | price, (+/- % change in
Merchant closing benchmark)- closing benchmark)- closing benchmark) -
Banker 30th calendar days |90th calendar days from| 180th calendar days
from listing listing from listing
Not applicable

BEELIA/E

BEELINE CAPITAL ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

SEBI Registration Number: INM000012917

Address: 807, Phoenix, Opp. Girish Cold Drinks, Near Vijay Cross Roads,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad -380009, Gujarat.

Telephone Number: 079 4840 5357

Email Id: mb@beelinemb.com

Investors Grievance Id: ig@beelinemb.com

IName of Merchant Banker and contact details (Website: www.beelinemb.com

(telephone and email id) of each Contact Person: Mr. Nikhil Shah
BRLM/Merchant Banker CIN: U67190GJ2020PTC114322
IName of Syndicate Members Not applicable

In case of issues by Small and Medium Enterprises under Chapter IX, details of the market maker to be included- Not applicable

Kishan Seth & Associates

Address: A-4, 4™ Floor, East Krishna Nagar, Delhi — 110 051
Telephone No: +91 98994 53803

Email Id: kishanseth@ksasso.com, Seth.kishan@gmail.com
'Website: Not Applicable

Contact Person: CA Kishan Seth

Membership No: 535111

Firm Registration No. 038012N

Name of Statutory Auditor

Name of Registrar to the Issue and contact [Not Applicable
details (telephone and email id)

Name of Credit Rating Agency and the rating
or grading obtained, if any

Name of Debenture trustee, if any.




Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

INon Syndicate Registered Brokers

Details regarding website address(es)/ link(s)
from which the investor can obtain list of
registrat to issue and share transfer agents,
depository participants and stock brokers who
can accept application from investor (as

applicable)
PROMOTER OF THE ISSUER COMPANY
Sr. No. Name Individual/Corporate Experience & Educational Qualification
1. Info Edge  (India)Corporate Experience: Info Edge (India) Limited (“IEIL”) was
Limited incorporated on May 1, 1995, as a private limited

company under the Companies Act, 1956. It was
converted into a public company on April 27, 2006. The
equity shares of IEIL are listed on BSE and NSE. Its
corporate identity number is L74899DL1995PLC068021
and its registered office is situated at Ground Floor, 12A,
94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.

IEIL is primarily in the business of operating multiple
internet-based services through its various web portals
and mobile applications. It currently operates in four|
service verticals — (a) in recruitment solutions through its|
brands naukri.com, iimjobs.com, hirist.com,
ambitionbox.com, bigshyft.com, jobhai.com; (b) in real
estate services through its brand 99acres.com; (c) in
matrimonial services through its brand jeevansaathi.com;
and (d) in education services through its brand
shiksha.com.

Educational Qualification: Not applicable

Details of promoter/s should not exceed 500 words while explaining their experience and educational qualifications

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Company Overview: The Transferor Company was incorporated on September 21, 2010, as a private company under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Transferor Company was converted into a public company on March 26, 2015.

Product/Service Offering: The Transferor Company was incorporated to carry out the following main objects:

1. To carry on the business of providing services and solutions in relation to placement consultancy, personnel recruitment,
staffing, professional hiring, high skilled executive search payroll consultancy, head hunting, management training, post
recruitment services, human financial matters, management consultancy, human technical matters, temporary staffing and
other related services, to all kinds of persons, firms or organizations, either society or on behalf of such persons, firms or
organizations, whether in India or overseas in all categories of manpower requirements.

2. To develop, possess, buy, sell and market certain technological solutions in area of placement consultancy including
technologies like development and marketing of a recruitment framework software to aid in searching for candidates, job
openings, arranging, screening and filtering of data in curriculum vitae/ resume of candidates and to carry out all acts so
as to effectively find the right person for the right job in the shortest possible time frame.

Revenue segmentation by product/service offering: Not applicable — There are no different revenue segments of the Transferor
Company.

Geographies Served: Not applicable
Revenue segmentation by geographies: Not applicable

Key Performance Indicators: The Transferor Company does not publish any key performance indicators other than financial
information as stated in its audited financial statements.

Client Profile or Industries Served: Not applicable
Revenue segmentation in terms of top 5/10 clients or Industries: Not applicable

Intellectual Property, if any: Not applicable




Market Share: Not applicable

Manufacturing plant, if any: Not applicable

Employee Strength: 0

Note:

(1) The quantitative statements shall be substantiated with Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and other quantitative factors.
(2) No qualitative statements shall be made which cannot be substantiated with KPIs.
(3) Information provided in the table should not exceed 1000 words.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Designation (Independent

Experience & Educational

(DIN: 00065640)

arts in economics from the

il.

Sr. No. Name / Whole time / Executive / cpe s Other Directorships
. Qualification
Nominee)
1 Sanjeev Bikhchandani ~ [Non-Executive Director He holds a bachelor’s degree off i. Info Edge (India) Limited;

Zomato Limited;

(DIN: 02528942)

computer  engineering  from
Vivekanand Education Society’s
Institute of Technology, Mumbai
and a post-graduate degree in|
business administration from

Indian Institute of Management,

iii.

[University of Delhi and a post| iii. Allcheckdeals India
graduate diploma in management| Private Limited;
from the Indian Institute of] iv. Calangute Advisory|
Management, Ahmedabad. He is Services Private Limited;
the founder and an executive| v. CIIE Initiatives;
director on the board of directors| vi. International Foundation|
of IEIL. His work experience for Research and|
includes advertising position at| Education;
Lintas India Limited, a marketing| vii. Jeevansathi Internet|
position at HMM Limited (now Services Private Limited;
known as Glaxo SmithKline), and| viii. Naukri Internet Services|
a senior management position at Limited,
CMYK Printech Private Limited| ix. Redstart Labs (India)
(owner  of  The Pioneer Limited,
newspaper). x. Startup Internet Services
Limited; and
xi. Startup Investments
(Holding) Limited
xii. Government
Emarketplace
xiii. Smartweb Internet|
Services Limited
2 Chintan Arvind Thakkar[Non-Executive Director Mr. Thakkar is a Chartered] 1. Info (Edge) India Limited,
(DIN: 00678173) Accountant by profession and has| ii. Allcheckdeals India
around 30 years of experience in Private Limited;
finance, consulting, and| iii. Diphda Internet Services
operations.  His  experience| Limited;
includes creating innovative| iv. Jeevansathi Internet
business models, joint ventures, Services Private Limited;
structuring  of  transactions, v. Newinc Internet Services
merger and acquisition Private Limited;
integration, fund raising, capital] vi. Smartweb Internet|
structuring, licensing models and Services Limited;
large deals ranging from software| vii. Startup Internet Services
licenses to real estate. He is| Limited; and
currently the chief financial|viii. Startup Investments
officer of IEIL and was associated (Holding) Limited.
with Computer Associates prior
to joining IEIL.
3 Mohit Naresh BhandariNominee Director He holds a bachelor’s degree in| i. Indiaideas Com Limited;

. Open Financial
Technologies Private
Limited; and
Temasek Holdings
Advisors India Private
Limited.

@



Calcutta.

Temasek’s
based in India.

He joined Temasek Holdings
Advisors India Private Limited
(“Temasek”) in 2008 and is
currently the managing director at
investment  team

With around 15 years of]
investment experience, he
currently co-manages the
investment activities of|
Temasek’s Indian team and

serves on the board of Indiaideas
Com Limited (BillDesk), and
Open Financial
Private Limited. Prior to joining
Temasek, he was associated with
investment banking at Merrill
Lynch, Mumbeai, for 8 years.

Technologies

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Details of means of finance — Not applicable
The fund requirements for each of the objects of the Issue are stated as follows: (X in crores)

Sr.
No.

Objects of the Issue

Total estimate Amount
cost Deployed till

Amount to be
financed from
Net Proceeds

Estimated Net Proceeds
Utilization

Fiscal 20 | Fiscal 20

Not applicable

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in utilization of issue proceeds of
past public issues / rights issue, if any, of the Transferor Company in the preceding 10 years.- Not applicable

Name of monitoring agency, if any- Not applicable

Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any

Convertible securities being offered by the Company

Face Value / Issue Price per Convertible securities

Issue Size

Interest on Convertible Securities

Conversion Period of Convertible Securities

Not applicable

Conversion Price for Convertible Securities

Conversion Date for Convertible Securities

Details of Security created for CCD

Shareholding Pattern:

Sr. No. Particulars Pre Issue number of shares % Holding of Pre issue
1. Promoter and Promoter Group 608,305 50.01%
2. Public 608,195 49.99%
Total 1,216,500 100.00%

Number/amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by selling shareholders, if any- Not applicable




CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIALS

For the year ended For the year
Particulars March 31, 2023 F(l)\rq;lrfhygir 2‘*(‘]‘;12"“‘ F‘l’&;'r‘cehy;‘r 2"(‘)‘2‘11"‘1 ended March 31,
(Note A) i i 2020

Total income from operations (Net)! Nil Nil Nil Nil
INet Profit/ (Loss) before tax and (322) 54,629,776 690,131 740,638
extraordinary items? (in  ‘000)

INet Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary| (386) 48,284,875 690,020 740,521
items (in X ‘000)

Equity Share Capital (in X ‘000) 12,165 12,165 12,165 12,165
Reserves and Surplus (in % 000) 34,253,285 37,133,666 4,064,337 3,378,643
INet worth (in X ©000) 34,265,450 37,145,831 4,076,502 3,390,808
Basic earnings per share (in %)3 (0.32) 39,691.64 567.22 608.73
Diluted earnings per share (3)3 (0.32) 39,691.64 567.22 608.73
Return on net worth (in %)* (0.0011), 129.99 16.93 21.84
Net asset value per share (in %)° 28,167.24 30,535.00 3,351.01 2,787.35

Note A - Transferor Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. We have provided
the information basis standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 (approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Company but are yet to be adopted by the shareholders of the Transferor Company).

Total income from operations (Net) excludes the amount of other income as mentioned in the financial statements of the Transferor Company.
’Profit before tax and extraordinary items includes the amount of exceptional items.
3Basic and Diluted earnings per share are calculated after considering the exceptional items.
“Return on net worth % has been calculated by applying the following formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items divided by Net
worth and multiplied by 100.
SNet asset value per share has been calculated by applying the following formula: sum of the balance of Equity Share Capital & Reserves and
Surplus divided by number of outstanding equity shares.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

The below mentioned risks are top 5 risk factors as per the Abridged Prospectus:

1. The Transferor Company has not generated revenue for operations for the past three fiscals i.e. March 31, 2023, March
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. Any reduction in other income of the Transferor Company or inability to raise capital from
the existing or future shareholders of the Transferor Company can adversely affect the cash flows and future prospects of
the Transferor Company.

2. The Transferor Company has negative cash flows from operating activities for the past three fiscals i.e. March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. Such negative cash flows from operating activities can adversely affect the cash
position and reputation of the Transferor Company.

3. The Transferor Company is vulnerable to volatility in the interest rates as currently, the Transferor Company generates its
entire income from fixed deposits. Any adverse change in the interest rates for fixed deposits can lead to reduction in the
cash flows and future prospects of the Transferor Company.

4. The Transferor Company is a jointly held by Info Edge (India) Limited and MacRitchie Investments Pte. Ltd. Any dispute
or stalemate between the joint venture partners can lead to delay in decision making in the Transferor Company which can
adversely affect the business, reputation and future prospects of the Transferor Company.

5. Any non-compliance with the regulatory and statutory laws of India may lead to penalties and fines which can adversely
affect the cash position of the Transferor Company.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the Transferor Company and amount involved
Name of Entity Disciplinary actions

A Statutory or |by the SEBI or Material Aggregate

Criminal Tax s amount
q . Regulatory [Stock Exchanges Civil .
Proceedings | Proceedings ] : Ot involved (Rs
Proceedings |against our Litigations | .
in crores)
Promoters

Transferor Company Not applicable
By the Transferor Company INil INil INil INil INil
Against the Transferor Company [Nil INil INil INil INil
Directors
By our Directors INil INil INil INil INil

@




Against the Directors Nil INil INil INil Nil
Promoters
By Promoters Nil INil INil INil INil Nil
Against Promoters INil 9 INil INil INil 219.04
Subsidiaries Not applicable
By Subsidiaries INil INil INil INil INil
Against Subsidiaries INil INil INil INil INil
B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the Transferor Company and amount involved:

Sr. No. Particulars Litigation filed by Current status Amount involved

Nil

C. Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters in last 5 financial years
including outstanding action, if any (200 - 300 words limit in total):

e During the financial year 2021-22, a penalty of 11,800 each, was imposed on Info Edge (India) Limited (“IEIL”) for
alleged non-compliance with Regulation 44(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) by NSE and BSE (NSE and BSE together, the
“Stock Exchanges”), respectively. The penalty was imposed for delay in submission of voting results of the
shareholders’ meeting of IEIL held on April 12, 2021, to consider and approve the scheme of amalgamation of
Highorbit Careers Private Limited with IEIL. IEIL paid the penalty on May 31, 2021 subject to final disposal of an
application made by IEIL for waiver of the penalty imposed. IEIL had filed the application on May 31, 2021 with the
Stock Exchanges for waiver of the penalty on the grounds that the requirements of the Listing Regulations could not
be met as the shareholders’ meeting was held in accordance with the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal,
Principal Bench, New Delhi (“NCLT”) and all disclosures were made by IEIL within the timelines stipulated by the
NCLT and the delay in compliance, if any, was only due to the non-availability of the report of the NCLT appointed
Chairperson. IEIL intimated the voting results to the Stock Exchanges on April 20, 2021, after receipt of the report of
the NCLT appointed Chairperson, which included the voting results of the said shareholders’ meeting, on April 19,
2021 which is within 48 hours of receiving the report of the NCLT appointed Chairperson. Accordingly, NSE
considered the waiver application filed by IEIL favorably and refunded the penalty amount on October 22, 2021.
Subsequently, BSE vide an e-mail dated July 19, 2022 has informed that IEIL’s request for waiver of the penalty has
been approved and the penalty amount paid by IEIL will be adjusted towards payment payable to BSE.

D.  Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters (200 - 300-word limit in total): Nil

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION AS PER BRLM / ISSUER COMPANY
NIL

DECLARATION BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/regulations
issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established
under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be have been complied with and no
statement made in the Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulation issued there under, as the case may be.
We further certify that all statements in the Abridged Prospectus are true and correct.




